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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has bheen positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
S EEH

Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited
BRBEMEER (IBR) ARAR

100%

Kong Shum Union Property
Management Group Limited
AR MEEREEBR AR

100% 100% 100%
Kong Shum Union Property Q & V Security K-King Cleaning Services
Management Company Limited Company Limited Limited
BARBEMEEEBR AT BEREHARAT HYB2RGEERAT]
Note MteE

Place of Nature of
Incorporations: Services
B S 3 B RIS E
Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited Cayman Islands Investment holding
BRI AYMEEIE(ER)ERAR HE/HS BEER
Kong Shum Property Management Group Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding
BARBMEMEERERMARA RERTEE REER
Kong Shum Union Property Management Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of property
management services
BRBEMEEEBERAT BB RV EEERIRY
Q & V Security Company Limited Hong Kong Provision of security
services
BEEFERA BB RERZRE
K-King Cleaning Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning
services by
subcontractmg
HBEZRBERA 5 B BREB 2R
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

LISTING

On 11 October 2013, the Company was successfully listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”). The Listing has laid a foundation for the Group’s
continuous development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year under review was full of challenges and difficulties,
but the Group continued its development efforts to stay
competitive in the market. Under our Property Management
Portfolio, we have been awarded 26 management contracts
in residential and commercial projects including Leung King
Estate with 6,844 units- a Tenant Purchase Scheme Residential
Project, Belvedere Garden Phase 3 with 2,296 units- a Middle-
class Private Residential Project and Siu Shan Court with
1,872 units- a Home Ownership Scheme Residential Project.

During the year, revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014 was approximately HK$325.0 million (2013:
284.1million), representing an increase of 14.4% as compared
with last year. Consolidated gross profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$66.2
million (2013: 52.3 million), representing an increase of
26.6% as compared with last year. The percentage on profit
attributable to owners was decreased by 9.7% as compared
with last year and were mainly due to the effect on Listing
expenses incurred on year 2013 for the amount approximately
HK$ 6.5 million. Excluding the effect of Listing expenses into
account, the profit attributable to owners was increased by
16.9% from approximately HK$ 9.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2013 to approximately HK$11.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014 respectively.
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2014
was HK$0.014 (2013: HK$0.019).

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK5 cents
per share subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
general meeting.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and operation in the year
2013/2014 with shareholders in the following section of
management discussion and analysis.

MILESTONE

2013 marks the 30th anniversary of the Group. As we celebrate
this important milestone, we are more determined than ever
to uphold our core principles and build on the good progress
that we have made in our dedicated efforts to provide quality
services to our customers and to increase value for our
shareholders.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The number of property in Hong Kong market is expanding.
Public opinion voices concern over housing stock production
and the speeding up of the issue of housing completion in
the near future is expected to solve the issue of heavy demand
on housing. It is envisaged that the property management
business will expand simultaneously. On the other hand, even
though strong competition exists and soaring costs resulting
from minimum wage revision and inflation are not avoidable,
the Directors are confident that the Group is now in an
appropriate stage to increase its market share after the Listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and believe
that the Group would be benefited from the Listing.

In the near future, we will continue to expand our management
portfolio by capturing the continuing outsourcing activities
implemented by private residential owners, corporations and
government institutions.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest
gratitude to the management and our staff for their significant
contributions. | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
all our shareholders and investors for their endless support.
With the solid business base and the effort of all our staff,
the Group will endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Ho Ying Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

OVERVIEW

The Group is a property management services group principally
engaged in the provision of property management services in
Hong Kong primarily targeting residential properties. The
Group operates under the brand name of “Kong Shum” and
provides a range of management services including security,
repair and maintenance, cleaning, finance management,
administrative and legal support. Under an established
functional structure with various departments, the Group has
dedicated teams to carry out the aforementioned management
services. The Group also employs a team of security staff to
provide security services as part of the services provided under
property management contracts or under stand-alone security
services contracts. For the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group provided property security services for 29 properties
under stand-alone security services contracts. The operating
arm of the Group’s security services is mainly Q & V Security
Company Limited (“Q&V"”). The Group hires its own security
staff to provide property security services. The Group also
employs registered technicians to provide basic repair and
maintenance services to its customers if required. In relation
to the cleaning services, the Group subcontracts substantially
all of its cleaning services to third-party contractors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Summary Financial Performance

The result without excluding
Listing expenses

E 3 3C1]

AEBLA—HYEEERBEER TER
FRANERHEYEEERS L EBHY
EEME-AEBENUBR | mELAEE
& WIRH—RIEERE BERE  #
[EFRE RF FHEE TBAAEX
RoAENERENINERET  AEERY
ZE#F > A REHATT LT B RSS -
AREBTBFE-XRLZETHME UER
MEEIE A X TR IR SO LR 2 IR
Ba# AL RS - # 2201463 A31
BUEFE ARERBEBLRZREEH
A9 ME R B ER LIRSS - NEE R
LRBEOKERFTIZRBEEEHARR
A((EED AEEBGFREZE TRHY
ERZRE - AKREMEREMEERT
AEPRH(INAFTR)ENEE MRER
5 o BB R IRTS - AN B H KB 0 80% AR
DB E =T EdimE

g del
HBREME

The result excluding
Listing expenses

BELTHINES TEELTRINES

2014 2013 2014 2013

20145 2013F 20145 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change HK$'000 HK$'000 Change

T THL g T THL g
Revenue g 324,981 284,063 14.4% 324,981 284,063 14.4%
Cost of services RAEA A (258,781) (231,764) 11.7% (258,781) (231,764) 11.7%
Gross Profit £ 66,200 52,299 26.6% 66,200 52,299 26.6%
Gross profit margin ER=E 20.4% 18.4% n/a 20.4% 18.4% nla
Other income/(expenses), net  EMMA/(A%)F8E 279 0 nla 279 0 nla
Administrative expenses THRAX (37,980) (30,422) 24.8% (37,980) (30,422) 24.8%
Other operating expenses HEi 2@y (19,775) (13,084) 51.1% (13,245) (8,763) 51.1%
Finance costs BEM K (1,105) (1,559) -29.1% (1,105) (1,559) -29.1%
Profit before tax BTt A& R 1,619 71,234 5.3% 14,149 11,555 22.4%
Income tax expense FERAY (2,591) (1,664) 55.7% (2,591) (1,664) 55.7%
Profit attributable to owners of A2 EHA AELER

the Company 5,028 5,570 9.7% 11,558 9,891 16.9%
Net profit margin fiEE 1.5% 2.0% n/a 3.6% 3.5% nla

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2014, all of the
Group’s revenue was derived from its operation in Hong Kong.
The Group derived revenue of approximately HK$17.4 million
and HK$20.7 million respectively from stand-alone security
services contracts for the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2014 respectively, representing approximately 6.1% and 6.4%
of its total revenue. The following table sets out the Group’s
revenue by contract type for the years ended 31 March 2013
and 2014

BEREFN WK

Iy

B E2013F K201443A31B 1L F & A&
ERBEWRSYRECEENEE BHEE
20134 K201443A31B I FE A& H
REBIRERBEELDHWED LA
1,740B 8 T 2,0708 8 0 AEBE KA
BBEREZBREANDAINOGEBREZD
6.1%K%6.4% c TRZEANWBEAHINEE
2013%F 201493 A318 It FEAREB I

Ns
A

2014 2013

20144 2013%F
HK$’ million percentage HK$' million percentage
BEBT FEAL  EEBT FMEEDL

Property management services MEEEBEREEH

contracts 304.3 93.6% 266.7 93.9%
Property security services contracts ERLZIREA 4 20.7 6.4% 17.4 6.1%
325.0 100% 284.1 100.0%

The Group’s revenue improved by approximately 14.4% from
approximately HK$284.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2013 to approximately HK$325.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to
the growth of revenue generated from property management
services contracts, increasing by approximately 14.1% to
approximately HK$304.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2014. Revenue generated from security services contracts
also recorded an increase of approximately 19.0% to
approximately HK$20.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2014. The significant increase on revenue was due to
adjustment of service income after the increase in statutory
minimum wage in Hong Kong from HK$28.0 per hour to
HK$30.0 per hour effective from 1 May 2013.

AEEKK &= A EH E2013F3H31H 1E
FEH2841EB T EFANLA%ZEEHZE
201453 A31H IEF E #3.25018 % 7T © 7%
ENFEFEHRMEEERBEOEENK
F R B E2014F3A318 IEFE M
#114.1% % 493.04318 78 T - H 2201443
ASIBLEFE REBBADELEN WS
INEFBIE R #4919.0% % %12,0708 B T » W
WmAEIEMBERERBEERELERH
T/ N\F28.08 LI ME S/ NF30.08T(B
2013F5 1B BEM) & FAERISBAFT
@(o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

REVENUE (continued)

The following graph sets out revenue for the years ended 31
March 2012, 2013 and 2014.

Revenue
HK$ million

Yo zm
BEBT

55 (&)

NE 5B 20125 « 20134 &20144F3
RA31BE IEFE R ER
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2012 2013

COST OF SERVICES

The total cost of services amounted to approximately HK$231.8
million and HK$258.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2013 and 2014 respectively, representing approximately
81.6% and 79.6% respectively of the Group’s revenue, and
also an increase of approximately 11.7% compared to the
corresponding period in 2013. The significant increase was
mainly due to the increase on wages after the increase in
statutory minimum wage in Hong Kong from HK$28.0 per
hour to HK$30.0 per hour effective from 1 May 2013.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
26.6% from approximately HK$52.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2013 to approximately HK$66.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014. The gross profit margin was
approximately 18.4% and 20.4% for year ended 31 March
2013 and 2014 respectively. The Group had negotiated and
adjusted the service fee in order to reflect the increase in
costs and to maintain a growth on the gross profit margin.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

BRBEMEERE (ER)BERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT (continued)

The following graph sets out gross profit for the years ended
31 March 2012, 2013 and 2014.

EF
BEBT

Gross profit
HK$ million
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The percentage on profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 9.7% as compared with previous
year, which was mainly due to the effect on Listing expenses
incurred in year 2013 for the amount of approximately HK$6.5
million. Excluding the effect of Listing expenses, the profit
attributable to owners increased by approximately 16.9% from
approximately HK$9.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2013 to approximately HK$11.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2014 and the net profit margin increased slightly
by approximately 0.1 percentage point from approximately
3.5% to 3.6% for the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2014
respectively.
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE BAREE ABL G (&)
COMPANY (continued)

The following graph sets out profit attributable to owners of T B &%l & £20124F « 20134 K& 201443
the Company (without excluding Listing expenses) for the years ~ A31B It FEAR QNG HA AE(SEF (BIE

i ended 31 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. ERX)e
: Profit attributable to owners of the Company RREHB AEERF
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The following graph sets out profit attributable to owners of B & %I & £20124F + 20134 & 201443

1
: the Company (excluding Listing expenses) for the years ended  A31 B IFEEARARHEE AEG SN (TE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the reporting period
were approximately HK$38.0 million (2013: HK$30.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 24.8% compared
to the corresponding period in 2013. This was mainly
attributable to the increase in staff cost including staff salaries,
bonus and Directors’ emoluments incurred during the reporting
period.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s other operating expenses for the reporting period
were approximately HK$19.8 million (2013: HK$13.1 million),
representing an increase of approximately 51.1% compared
to the corresponding period in 2013. The significant increase
was mainly due to the increase in Listing expenses, audit
fees, insurance, donation and professional fees incurred
during the reporting period.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

BEREFN WK

TR

HwEHARNEBMNITERAX A%3,8008 75
JC(20134F : 3,040& 78 7T) B2013F [A1HA
EINKI24.8% c ZIEMFE ZHNWME AR
EEMNBIXNA(BIEEIH© TLARE
EEEN) I ANATER o

Hth&&p
wEBRNASEBENEMEERT A%1,980
BB (20134F : 1,310887T) B20134F
A HA AN 4951.1% ° sZ KIBIE Ty X E /H
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RBES MBERRERER

For the year ended/as at

31 March
B/ BZ3A3NALEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Financial position B AR R
Current assets (HK$'000) REEE(TET) 104,166 96,142
Current liabilities (HK$'000) RBBE(TET) 62,223 84,016
Net current assets (HK$'000) RBEEFE(TETL) 41,943 12,126
Total assets (HK$’000) mEE(FAT) 115,994 105,023
Bank borrowings and obligations under — RITEE MRV EHE &IE
finance leases (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 19,890 39,751
Bank balances and cash (HK$'000) R1TEBR MRS (FAET) 35,900 5,577
Total equity (HK$'000) farkEs (TEmT) 53,567 20,451
Key ratios FER
Gearing ratio (1) BEEABRKEEQD 37.1% 194.4%
Current ratio (2) BN (2) 1.67 {Ztimes 1.14 f&times
Return on equity (3) AR AN B 3 & (3) 13.6% 28.6%
Return on assets (4) BERmE4) 4.5% 5.6%
Net Debt to equity ratio (5) FREHESEE®G) 0% 167.1%
Debtors turnover day (6) JE W BR BB ¥ B 21(6) 51.6 Hdays 52.0 Hdays
Creditors turnover day (7) FET BR BB 8 B 20(7) 27.1 Hdays 30.0 Hdays
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

Notes:

1. Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For
the avoidance of doubt, total debt represents bank borrowing and finance
lease obligation.

2. Current ratio is calculated as the current assets divided by current
liabilities.
3. Return on equity is calculated as the profit for the year divided by

average total equity.

4. Return on assets is calculated as the profit for the year divided by
average total assets.

5. Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as the total debt net of cash and
bank balances and divided by total equity. For the avoidance of doubt,
total debt represents bank borrowing and finance lease obligation.

6. Debtors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade receivables divided
by revenue times number of days in the period.

7. Creditors’ turnover day is calculated as average trade payables divided
by cost of services times number of days in the period.

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31
March 2014 with bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$35.9 million (2013: approximately HK$5.6 million).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has bank borrowings and
obligations under finance lease of approximately HK$19.9
million (2013: approximately HK$39.8 million).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$41.9 million (2013: approximately
HK$12.1 million). The Group’s operations are financed
principally by revenue generated from its business operations,
available cash and bank balances and bank borrowings.

RETURN ON EQUITY

The return on equity dropped from 28.6% for the year ended
31 March 2013 to approximately 13.6% for the year ended
31 March 2014, mainly due to (i) non-recurring Listing
expenses of approximately HK$6.5 million incurred for the
year ended 31 March 2014; and (ii) the placing of shares
(the “Placing”) upon Listing which enlarged the Company’s
equity.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RETURN ON ASSETS

The return on assets dropped from 5.6% for the year ended
31 March 2013 to approximately 4.5% for the year ended
31 March 2014, mainly due to (i) non-recurring Listing
expenses of approximately HK$6.5 million incurred for the
year ended 31 March 2014; and (ii) the placing of shares
enlarged the Company’s asset.

CURRENT RATIO

The Group’s current ratio increased from 1.14 times as at
31 March 2013 to 1.67 times as at 31 March 2014 mainly
due to the settlement on bank borrowing of approximately
HK$19.5 million during the reporting period.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the total debt (i.e. bank
borrowing and finance lease obligation) divided by total equity,
as at 31 March 2014 is 37.1% (2013: 194.4%). The total
bank borrowings decreased from approximately HK$38.8
million as at 31 March 2013 to approximately HK$19.3 million
as at 31 March 2014 as the Group settled the bank loan
during the reporting period. On the other hand, the Group’s
total equity increased significantly during the year ended 31
March 2014 due to the Placing in the amount of HK$ 33.0
million.

NET DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio decreased from
approximately 167.1% as at March 2013 to approximately
0% as at 31 March 2014 mainly due to (i) the bank borrowing
of approximately HK$19.5 million had been settled during
the year, (ii) the increase in cash and bank balances from
the proceeds of the Placing of shares in the amount of
HK$33.0 million.

DEBTORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The debtors’ turnover day decreased slightly from approximately
52.0 days for the year ended 31 March 2013 to approximately
51.6 days for the year ended 31 March 2014 under the
monitor of the recoverability on the trade debtors.

BEREFN WK

EE@MBR

BERBEHEEZ2013F3A31IH IEFE
#45.6% N EE E2014F3A31B ILEE
#45% EEZHN (VB £201443A31
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BT RNREBARRB ZEE

RELE =

AEBE M RE L X H2013F3H318 B
1.14/338E NE201453 A31HM1.671%  *
EHRREARNEZRITEELL, 950875
7T|:o

EEEMALE

M2014F3A318  AEEMEEAGL X
(EEABEBERITEENREMEHRE)
BrA4BRE RS ) B37.1% (20134 : 194.4%)°

HIRITEE R MN20139F3 A31H 43,8808
I A E2014%3831491,9308 78 7T -

THERBRERAREBEERITER S
—HHE ARERNEERREZE201453H
BIHILEFEREEN T ERANRER
1SFIE3,3008 BILHER -

REEYHERLEE
REERFAERERILER2013F3H31
B #)167.1%8 4 2201443 A31H £90% -
FEHRR  (VFAEERITEELNLE
BT (NVREREEMNMERIESHES MR
ITHEERIE N - ©FEA3,3008 8T

FEW AR A5 B &

AR5 S MR SR AT W [ 1 e BE - R MR BR
HEEH B BB E2013F3A3IR IEFE
#)52.0H g8 ™ [& 28 £2014%3A31H
LIEFEXI51.6H °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

CREDITORS’ TURNOVER DAY

The creditors’ turnover day was slightly decreased from
approximately 30.0 days for the year ended 31 March 2013
to approximately 27.1 days for the year ended 31 March
2014. The decrease was due to the early settlement to some
creditors.

OPERATION REVIEW
Outlook

The number of property in Hong Kong market is expanding.
Public opinion voices concern over the housing stock
production and the speeding up of the housing completion
in the near future is expected to solve the heavy demand on
housing. It is envisaged that the property management
business will expand simultaneously. On the other hand, even
though strong competition and soaring cost resulting from
minimum wage revision and inflation are not avoidable, the
Directors are confident that the Group is now in an appropriate
stage to increase its market share after the Listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and believe that
the group would be benefited from the Listing.

Human resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a total of 2,062
employees. The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31
March 2014 amounted to approximately HK$274.1 million.
To ensure that the Group is able to attract and retain staff
capable of attaining the best performance levels, remuneration
packages are reviewed on a regular basis. In addition,
discretionary bonus is offered to eligible employees of the
Group by reference to the Group’s results and individual
performance.

Staff Cost and statutory minimum wage

The minimum wage was revised from HK$28.0 per hour to
HK$30.0 per hour on 1 May 2013. The average remuneration
of the Group’s security staff and technical staff has increased
from approximately HK$28.4 per hour in April 2013 to
approximately HK$30.2 per hour in May 2013, with
approximately 6.7% increment. The salary payment for the
Group’s security staff and technicians has increased by
approximately 9.0% between April 2013 and May 2013.
Meanwhile, the Group’s revenue has increased by approximately
14.4% for the year ended 31 March 2014 as compared with
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Services contracts

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the management
contracts for 3 large estates, namely Yue Tin Court, Leung
King Estate and Siu Shan Court, were awarded to the Group
adding 10,428 domestic units, 9 non-domestic units and 85
car parking spaces to the property management portfolio of
the Group. In addition, 22 other property management
contracts were also awarded. During the year ended 31 March
2014, property management contract and 5 stand-alone
security service contracts were awarded to the Group. As at
31 March 2014, the total number of property management
service contracts is 394 and the total number of stand-alone
security service contracts is 17. The total number of service
contracts as at 31 March 2014 is 411.

Contract renewal complying with procedural
requirements

During the year ended 31 March 2014, 11 out of the total
of 411 service contracts were not complying with the
procedural requirements for contract renewal as stipulated in
section 20A of the Building Management Ordinance (Chapter
344 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and termination notices were
served to the clients who failed to follow the procedural
requirements. All of the remaining 400 valid contracts as at
31 March 2014 were in compliance with the said procedural
requirements or not applicable under the Building Management
Ordinance. The senior management adopts tight control
system to monitor the full compliance of the procedural
requirements. All newly signed contracts during the year
ended 31 March 2014 included the mandatory term requiring
the client to follow the said procedural requirements (if
applicable).

Client accounts

As at 31 March 2014, the Group was holding 47 client
accounts amounting to approximately HK$18.0 million (2013:
approximately HK$22.2 million) on trust for and on behalf of
customers. These bank accounts are opened in the names
of the Group and the relevant property. The management fees
received from the tenants or owners of the properties were
deposited into these client accounts and the expenditure of
these customers were paid from these client accounts.

BEREFN WK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

Performance bond

As at 31 March 2014, the banks issued 14 bond certificates
amounting to approximately HK$16.9 million (2013:
approximately HK$15.8 million) on behalf of the Group to the
clients as required in the service contracts.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2014 (2013: approximately HK$1.9 million).

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments
as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business operations were conducted in Hong
Kong. The transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the
Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, there was no material impact
to the Group arising from the fluctuation in the foreign
exchange rates between the currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives arrangement
and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31 March
2014.

Major investment, acquisitions and disposals

Save for the Reorganisation, the Group did not have any
major investment, acquisitions, and disposals during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Charges over assets of the group

As at 31 March 2014, certain pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$15.9 million and the deposits placed for
life insurance policies of approximately HK$7.5 million were
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. Besides, the Group had certain motor vehicles acquired
under finance lease. The carrying value of motor vehicles
under finance lease amounted to approximately HK$1.5 million
and approximately HK$1.0 million as at 31 March 2013 and
2014 respectively.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Charges over assets of the group (continued)

The deposits placed for life insurance policies are denominated
in US$, a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group.

The following table set out the pledged bank deposits of the
Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2014:

BEEEWR DT

REORE(E)
AEENWEERR (H)

RAFRBEREFANREAZT(LIER
SERINEEE R )FTE

TREFIH2013F K2014F3831H A&
MEWIFIRITFR ¢

2014 2013

20145 20134

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THET

Pledged bank deposits (note) EEREFR () 15,896 15,666

Note: Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2014.

Comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in
the Prospectus for the period from 20 September 2013, being
the latest practicable date as defined in the Prospectus
(“LPD"), to 31 March 2014 (the “Review Period”) with the
Group’s actual business progress for the Review Period is set
out as follows:

Business objectives stated
in the Prospectus

BREBAFIL XK EE

Miat : BIRRIRITIF ;B M 2013F k20143 A31H
BHEBTRITZER UMEAREEERIRTT
BhE A o

EBECRERRBTEELR

#2013F9 A208 (AR ERTIEE MR
‘ERATHR(REERTAMI))E
2014F3A31B ([ EEEEME ) IEHR 2R
IRERRFTE 2 %7 B 1R AN B 72 B B HA
MR EREREESELEMNDTIOT

Actual business progress

Implementation of old
district property
management scheme

ERERMREET S

Set up development team
internally to determine the
timetable, objective and resource
allocation of the scheme;
B N ED R B B B DA TR T AT A Y
A% - BEMERSE

A steering group headed by Mr. Ho Ying Choi, the
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Group and assisted by Mr. Lau Ping Kwan, the associate
director of KSU (note) was established. Other members
include Mr. Yeung Pui Hung, the senior property manager
of KSU, the area managers and the representatives from

the maintenance department of the Company.
—ERREERITES RITBER MM L E TR

K& R

HAAVAN
FL=|

VB EEE () IRE R E BB ES N

BRI - Hf K B BRIEERE A SRR LR RS
A ARRRRIESAE RREBORE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DT

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)

R mRE (&)

Comparison of business objectives with actual business ¥BEEHEBERERERFLE(E)

progress (continued)

Business objectives stated
in the Prospectus

BRERRAL XK EE

Actual business progress

- Formulate the detailed
business plan;

- BIETRAMERE S

— Gather building and flat
owners’ information in the
targeted areas such as Hung
Hom, To Kwa Wan and Sham
Shui Po in Hong Kong; and

- WEERME (WEBLH -+
& RRKE) m sy eE
fEFHERS: K

- Prepare promotional materials.

- OEEEENR

Expansion of the property Formulate the detailed operation

management portfolio plan and business strategy.
HRYEEEES il 5E 5 A B A & BT Bl A TS B
BS o

Mr. Lau Ping Kwan and Mr. Yeung Pui Hung were
assigned to take up the scheme and monitor the
developments of the progress. The working group
compating Mr. Lau and Mr. Yeung and their staff meets
bi-weekly to review the progress of the assignments
allotted to each regional management teams and to give
directives to the frontline property management staff.
MRE L4 RGME LB RARE B RETER
MR TENEBIEE BRERREETHEK &
MBEE — KM R R B EE K D A ER R E
B WRAGERASBETIER-

The district senior property managers have begun
approaching local leaders to exchange views on the
implementation of the scheme. The field management
teams under the supervision of the area managers have
recently started canvassing information and responses
from potential buildings or clients.
MESEMELEEFRIREBE A E AU ILE I
ERXMER EEGEBEEE THMREREERGTHER
RAEEETHAEFEEERREE-

The staff of the marketing team are preparing the
marketing materials illustrating the highlights of the
scheme with an aim to assist the area managers to
introduce the scheme to the target groups.
LHEFNE I FERREEMHEEZGENHME 5
FE 13 B R 5 A 38 DA () B IS BFARHE M 5T 2

A working group comprising of Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the
associate director of KSU (note), Mr. Law Kwok Leung,
the district senior property manager and Mr. Mo Kin
Keung, the senior estate manager (Member of the Hong
Kong Royal Institute of Charter Surveyor) was established.
—(AHBRAMENBREES (i) hskrsE WRER
MELBEEAREEUARSRNEECRLBTERTE
(REEXFHASMEBSRXS 8 ) AN IIEED K
D

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW (continued)
Comparison of business objectives with actual business ¥ EEHBMEREFLER(E)

progress (continued)

Business objectives stated
in the Prospectus

BRERRAL XK EE

EERNWE D

R mRE (&)

Actual business progress

The working group had already started the feasibility
studies on a number of non-domestic property
management modules including carparks, shopping
complex, government office buildings and educational
institutes.

ZIFEE AR L EFETENERR(BEEES BY
R BB T RAEKE) AT

Much efforts were endeavoured to work out different
business plans in relation to parking facilities and
commercial complex with terms of reference focusing on
the demand and supply, turn-over rates, market trends,
economic forecast, cost effectiveness of automation
systems and energy saving equipment and also the
promotional strategies.

THEEERAERE NUKERAEERBREERE
BHAREKE EMREEZ TN BB RN REEE
FENEF RBE THEBE  LBEEA RKARE N
R AR $H R B

Certain carpark owners were approached and necessary
information was collected from them. Some potential
facilities are identified and will be started in May 2014.
BEEHOHEESHAAARBEVENER - ERES
FTREHRRELHN2014F5 AR

Simultaneously, efforts are put on checking out the most
updated models, cost, operation, maintenance and
repairs, technical viability and availability of supplies or
shipping time for installing automation or energy saving
systems.

EERE - AR BB HERRS  ERNRERHNE
5o BN B REREE - BRI TIE R Em IR
SE AT ©

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a  fifit - [BEESE | E AR BB - WIERBANF622

“director” within the meaning of the Companies (Chapter 622 of the ﬁ/“ﬂflm | Ral 2R EHAAEEIESE K
Laws of Hong Kong) Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate YK EEETFr R A () ERAEFEIGE
director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the supervision ETHMEESIE  (EBAREENITEHREEE
of property management of the Group or its staff; (ii) supervision of the ZE RiNVAEBNEFBIEZ-

Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer

relations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN
OPERATION REVIEW (continued) K EEE(E)
Use of proceeds from the Listing TR BRIERR

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the IRIZEHRERFTH A E AR B BEITHRG
Company under the Placing as set out in the Prospectus were BB ATSHRIBEFEL A1, 75088 B
approximately HK$17.5 million, which was different from the — BIFA & & AT1S FUBEF 58 492,4408 7 T (1%
estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$24.4 million REESEGAEBRERMIIEZERE
(estimated on the assumption that the placing price would EBEMF A EGET) HEREERAITHEE
be the mid-point of the stated range as stated in the ZE2014%3A31H LM AEEDRZRWOT
Prospectus). For the period from the LPD until 31 March J5=\E TS R0E F%5E ¢

2014, the Group has applied the net proceeds as follows:

Net proceeds (HK$)
FrSREFECER)
Availahle Utilised Unutilised

Al A 25A RENVA

Repayment of bank loan EEBITENK 7.5 7.5 _
Implementation of old district property EERYEE RS

management scheme _ _ _
Expansion of the property HEMEERES

management portfolio — — _

7.5 7.5 -

The unutilized balance of the net proceeds will be applied FTSFIBFREZ AP BHRAKILERRE
in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the MEPTllE—EZI7=EA -
Prospectus.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREEYEETE (ZER)ERAQT



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, aged 61, is the chairman and the founder
of the Group, one of the controlling shareholders and executive
Directors. He was appointed as a Director on 15 August 2012
and is responsible for the Group’s overall business development.
He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He
was appointed as a director of KSU in August 1984.

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung founded KSU in August 1984 together
with an independent shareholder. He rejoined the Group in
May 2007 and has been a director of KSU since then.

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Choi, an
executive Director and one of the controlling shareholders.
Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member of the Group’s senior
management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung’s cousin.
Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung is not connected with
any other Directors or member of senior management,
Substantial Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi, aged 54, is an executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Group and one of the controlling
shareholders. He was appointed as a Director on 15 August
2012 and is responsible for business operation, finance
management and sales and marketing. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He was appointed as a director of KSU in March
1992.

Mr. Ho Ying Choi holds a Bachelor’s degree of science from
Memorial University of Newfoundland (Canada).

Mr. Ho Ying Choi is the brother of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, an
executive Director and one of the controlling shareholders.
Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, a member of the Group’s senior
management, is the spouse of Mr. Ho Ying Choi’'s cousin.
Save as disclosed, Mr. Ho Ying Choi is not connected with
any other Directors, member of the senior management,
Substantial Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGHREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kam Tak Yeung, aged 68, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 19 September 2013. He is responsible for the
overall business development.

Mr. Kam obtained the Certificate of Housing Management
from The University of Hong Kong in August 1978. He is a
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing and a
Registered Professional Housing Manager.

Mr. Kam has about 30 years of housing and property
management experience. Mr. Kam first served in the
Resettlement Department of Hong Kong in 1967. Afterwards,
Mr Kam was a housing assistant of the Housing Department
from April 1973 to November 1978. Mr. Kam then joined the
field of housing management and served as an assistant
housing manager from November 1978 to August 1986. He
was then promoted to housing manager in September 1986
until he retired from the Housing Department in April 1992.
Mr. Kam rejoined the field of property management afterwards,
serving as a senior property manager of KSU from June 1999
to March 2001. Mr. Kam was appointed as an associate
director of KSU (note) for the period from April 2001 to
November 2007 and has retired since then. Between 2008
and 2012, after retirement, Mr. Kam provided advice to the
Group on business development on a voluntary and ad hoc
basis.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM

Listing Rules.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Kwong Wai, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2013.
Mr. Cheung is a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Cheung has been as a director
of Hinterland Realty Limited from April 2008 to December
2012 when it was dissolved by deregistration pursuant to
section 291AA of the Companies Ordinance. Mr. Cheung,
together with another shareholder founded Hing Wai
Construction Company Limited in March 1993. Mr. Cheung
also served as a director of Hing Wai Construction Company
Limited for the period from April 1993 to August 2007.

Mr. Tong Sze Chung, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 19 September 2013. Mr. Tong is
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Tong is also the financial controller of Sportline Limited which
is wholly owned by S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Ltd (Stock Code:
1184).

Mr. Tong holds a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration
from the Open University of Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Tong joined Sportline Limited in January 1996 as an
accountant and was promoted as its financial controller in
December 2002 till now.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGHREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wong Tsz Ho, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 19 September 2013. Mr. Wong is
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong has
been a partner of a law firm, Christine M. Koo & Ip, Solicitors
& Notaries, since February 2006 and remains as so until
now.

Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Laws from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1996. Afterwards, he
obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws also from The
University of Hong Kong in June 1997. He was qualified as
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in October 1999. Mr. Wong worked as an assistant
solicitor of S.H. Leung & Co, Solicitors & Notaries, Christine
M. Koo & Ip, Solicitors & Notaries and S.T. Poon & Wong,
Solicitors respectively from October 1999 to May 2001, June
2001 to August 2002 and August 2002 to January 2006.
Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Christine M. Koo & Ip,
Solicitors & Notaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Ping Kwai, aged 63, is an associate director of KSU
(note). He has been working in KSU for more than fifteen
years and was promoted to this position in April 2008. He is
responsible for supervising property managers and advising
on the improvement of the Group’s overall standard. He is
also responsible for marketing in the private sector.

He then joined KSU as a property management officer in
September 1996.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM
Listing Rules. An associate director named herein is principally
responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of the Group
or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall
standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau obtained the Certificate in Housing Practice at the
HKUSPACE in August 2000 and was awarded the Diploma
in Housing Management by the same school in September
2002. He was elected a corporate member of the Chartered
Institute of Housing in October 2002 and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Housing in November 2002. In April
2003, he was registered as a Professional Housing Manager
at the Housing Managers Registration Board.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of the cousin of Mr. Ho Ying Cheung,
the chairman and an executive Director and Mr. Ho Ying
Choi, the chief executive officer and an executive Director.
Same as disclosed, Mr. Lau is not connected with any other
Directors, member of the senior management, Substantial
Shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Fong Shek Hung, aged 55, is an associate director of KSU
(note). He is mainly responsible for supervision of property
management, customer relations and administration.

Mr. Fong worked for the Hong Kong Government for the period
from 1978 to 2001. He joined the Housing Department in
October 1987 and was promoted to the position of housing
officer in October 1989. He resigned in August 2001 and
served as property manager in Synergis Management Services
Limited subsequently. He was the district general manager
before he left the company in February 2011 and joined KSU
in May 2011 as senior property manager. He was promoted
to the position of associate director of KSU (note) in February
2012.

Mr. Fong was awarded the Diploma in Housing Management
by the School of Professional and Continuing Education of
The University of Hong Kong (the “HKUSPACE") in September
1997. He was elected a corporate member of the Chartered
Institute of Housing in June 1999 and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Housing in June 2001. In May 2001, he
was registered as a Professional Housing Manager at the
Housing Managers Registration Board.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM
Listing Rules. An associate director named herein is principally
responsible for (i) the supervision of property management of the Group
or its staff; (ii) supervision of the Group’s administration or overall
standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer relations.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGHREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kam Hung, aged 47, is a financial controller of
KSU. He has been working in KSU for about 13 years. He
holds the Master of Business Administration from University
of South Australia, Adelaide, South Australia. He is responsible
for accounting and financial management of the Group’s
operation.

Mr. Cheng started working in Li, Tang, Chen & Company in
the auditing field in February 1989, and he was promoted to
the post of audit supervisor in April 1993. He joined Guangnan
(KK) Supermarket Limited as accounting manager in January
1995. He was later promoted to assistant financial controller
in August 2000 as his last position. He joined KSU as an
assistant accounting manager in October 2001 and later
promoted to financial controller.

Mr. Yeung Pui Hung, aged 65, is a senior property manager
of KSU. He has been working in KSU for 16 years and was
promoted to this position in April 2003. He is mainly
responsible for supervision of property management and
customer relations.

For the period from September 1975 to January 1998, Mr.
Yeung worked in Cathay Pacific Airways Limited. He joined
KSU as administration manager in February 1998.

He was awarded a Diploma in Management Studies jointly
by Hong Kong Polytechnic and Hong Kong Management
Association in September 1992.

Mr. Mo Kin Keung, aged 51, is a chief facility and property
manager of KSU. He is mainly responsible for daily operation
and management of major customers.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Mo was employed by the PCCW Group from December
1986 to August 2004. He was an assistant facilities manager
of Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited, the
infrastructure division spun off in May 2004 before his
departure. He then served as a property manager in Vigers
Property Management Service (Hong Kong) Limited from
October 2004 to July 2008 and afterwards worked as an
assistant property manager in ISS Facility Services Limited
from October 2008 to June 2009. He joined KSU as a property
manager in April 2010 and later promoted to chief facility
and property manager.

Mr. Mo was awarded the Continuing Education Diploma in
Property Management by City University of Hong Kong in
November 2002 and was elected as a corporate member of
the Chartered Institute of Housing in September 2006. In
November 2006, he was registered as Professional Housing
Manager at the Housing Managers Registration Board and
obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Art (Honours) in Housing
Studies in November 2006. In November 2011, he was elected
as a professional member of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. He was awarded the designation of the member
of International Professional Security Association in June 2010.
After one year, he obtained a degree of Master of Science in
Facilities Management by University of Greenwich, United
Kingdom through a long distance learning course in June
2011.

Mr. Law Kwok Leung, aged 55, is a senior property manager
of KSU. He joined KSU in January 2011 and is now the
leader of a team responsible for daily monitoring of the Group’s
operation. He is responsible for assisting in administrative
decisions, enhancing operation systems and procedures and
training new staff.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGHREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Law started working in TaiKoo Shing (Management) Limited
from November 1979. In October 1989, he worked as assistant
general manager in Main Shine Development Limited. He then
served as assistant general manager in Citybase Property
Management Limited for the period from August 2006 to
August 2007. Mr. Law worked in Synergis Management
Services Limited in 2008 and his last position was area
manager. During the period from May 2009 to 2010, he
worked as a senior property manager in Well Born Real Estate
Management Limited and joined KSU as senior property
manager in early 2011.

In 1994, Mr. Law was awarded the Higher Certificate in
Valuation and Property Management by the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was awarded the Diploma in
Housing Management by the HKUSPACE in August 1998. He
was elected a corporate member of the Chartered Institute
of Housing and obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Housing
Management from The University of Hong Kong in 2000. In
January 2001, he was registered as a Professional Housing
Manager at the Housing Managers Registration Board.

Mr. So Sui Shan, aged 60, is a senior property manager of
KSU. He has been working in KSU for more than five years.
He is mainly responsible for supervision of property
management and customer relations.

Mr. So had been as a civil servant of the Hong Kong
Government since 1973. He was promoted as housing manager
of the Housing Authority in January 1996. He served as a
senior property estate manager in Urban Property Management
Limited from August 2001 until September 2005. He was a
senior property manager of Shui On Properties Management
Services Limited from October 2005 to December 2007. He
then joined KSU as senior property manager in July 2008.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. So obtained the Certificate in Housing Practice at the
Department of Extra-Mural Studies of The University of Hong
Kong (now known as HKUSPACE) in August 1981. He was
awarded a graduate grade of membership of The Institution
of Fire Engineers of United Kingdom in March 1986. He then
pursued his studies in legal field and obtained a Bachelor’s
degree of Laws from the University of London as an external
student in August 1992. He was registered as a Professional
Housing Manager at the Housing Managers Registration Board
and was awarded the Certificate in Building Services
Engineering by Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
in March 2001 and July 2001 respectively.

He was elected as a corporate member of the Chartered
Institute of Housing and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Housing in 2002 and passed the qualifying examination
for estate agents of the Estate Agents Authority in July 2007.
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CQBPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERRE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of
corporate governance. The Board considers that enhanced
public accountability and corporate governance are beneficial
for the healthy growth of the Group, improving customer and
supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code effective from 11 October 2013 (the
“Listing Date”) upon the listing of the Company. According
to the code provision C.2.1, the Directors should at least
annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and report to shareholders that they
have done so in their Corporate Governance Report. The
review should cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM on
11 October 2013, and less than six months was left before
the financial year ended on 31 March 2014. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Company formulated a plan to
engage a third-party professional firm to conduct an internal
control review in July 2014. Save for the above, the Company
had complied with the CG Code for the year ended 31 March
2014 since the Listing Date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS (continued)

The duties of the Board include:

(i) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the CG Report.

During the year under review, the Board performed the above
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions in
securities of the Company effective from 11 October 2013
upon the Listing. Upon the Group’s specific enquiry, each
Director confirmed that, he had fully complied with the
required standard of dealings and there was no event of non-
compliance for the year ended 31 March 2014 since its
effective date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREARE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY
POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since
11 October 2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board that should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with
policies. The composition and diversity policies of the Board
is reviewed annually and regularly. The Board should ensure
that its changes in composition will not result in any undue
interference. The Board members should possess appropriate
professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members
according to the Company’s situations and need. While
participating in nomination and recommendation of director
candidates during the year, each member of the Board may
consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience in achieving diversity for the benefit
of the Company’s various business development and
management. The Board is to review the policy concerning
diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report,
including any quantitative targets and standards and its
progress with policy implementation.

In 2013, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board
and considered the Board composition and diversity policy
appropriate.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises 6 directors, including 2
Executive Directors, 1 Non-executive Director and 3
Independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 August 2012)

Mr. Ho Ying Choi (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 August 2012)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kam Tak Yeung (appointed on 19 September 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwong Wai (appointed on 19 September 2013)
Mr. Tong Sze Chung (appointed on 19 September 2013)
Mr. Wong Tsz Ho (appointed on 19 September 2013)

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all Directors are
set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report. All Directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience, knowledge
and execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out
his duties effectively and efficiently.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the directors of the
Company. The Board set up a nomination committee to
recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the
directors of the Company.

All executive Directors namely, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr.
Ho Ying Choi, have respectively entered into a service contract
with the the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on
1 September 2013 not less than 3 month notice in writing
served by either part on the other. Executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

All the independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr.
Cheung Kwong Wai, Mr. Tong Sze Chung and Mr. Wong Tsz
Ho and the non-executive Director, Mr. Kam Tak Yeung have
respectively entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of 3 years commencing on 19 September 2013
not less than 2 month notice in writing served by either part
on the other. The independent non-executive Directors and
the non-executive Director are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (continued)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, 2 Directors will
retire from office and are eligible for re-election. At each
following annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
are required to retire from office. Each Directors shall retire
from office once every 3 years. The Directors to retire in every
year shall be those appointed by the Board during the year
and those who have been longest in office since their last
election or re-election. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year shall retire and submit themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting immediately following
their appointments.

The executive Directors namely, Mr. Ho Ying Choi and Mr.
Ho Ying Cheung will retire from office as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, being
eligible offer themselves for re-election pursuant to Article of
Association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
were independent during the year.

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, there
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the members of the Board, in particular,
between the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive
of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND DELEGATION

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of
management company’s business and is collectively responsible
for the company’s affair under the Board’s direction and
supervision. All the Directors should make decision objectively
in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering
and making decisions on the following matters:

(I)  Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating
the Group’s strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(II) Diversification and extension of activities into new
business area;

(1) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;
(IV) Dividend policy;
(V) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(VI) Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control
systems; and

(VII) Monitoring the performance of the Management.
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND
DELEGATION (continued)

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group to the management. The delegated
functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. The Board
gives clear directions to the management as to the matters
that must be approved by the Board before discussions are
made on behalf of the Group by the management.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking
decisions objectively and acting in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management (the “Management’). The delegated
functions and assignments are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include
considering and making decisions on the following matters:

(i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set
by the Board;

(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

Closely monitoring operational and financial results in
accordance with plans and budgets;

Putting adequate operational,
control systems in place; and

planning and financial

(v) Managing the Group’s day to day business.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has complied with Code Provision A.2.1 which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separated and should not be performed by same
individual. The chairman is responsible for overseeing the
function of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company. Chairman at a board meeting is
currently elected on an ad-hoc basis at each board meeting.
Mr. Ho Ying Choi is the chief executive officer of the Company
and is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board fulfilled the requirement of appointing at least
three independent non-executive directors and they represented
at least one-third of the Board as stipulated by the GEM
Listing Rules. It met requirement of having at least one of
the independent non-executive directors with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independent non-executive
directors have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualification to carry out their duties so as to fully represent
the interests of the shareholders.
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CQBPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES

Directors’ attendance record of Board, Committee and General
Meetings from the date of Listing to 31 March 2014 is as
follows:

EZEER BRRASERBEER

B FHmBE#E2014F3A31H EE=HEE
e - LESNBRERS 2N T

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/GERLEER
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
E= EZe ENZEE FHZEEe REZEE® RRBEFAE
Executive Directors: BTEE:
Ho Ying Cheung B33 8/8 n/a n/a n/a n/a
AERA TEA TER it
Ho Ying Choi fA FEBL 8/8 n/a 111 n/a n/a
PN N ik
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
Kam Tak Yeung 255 48 n/a n/a n/a n/a
TEA TEA TER N
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTEE :
Directors:
Cheung Kwong Wai S = 4/8 212 n/a n/a n/a
TEA T i
Tong Sze Chung gy 4/8 2/2 11 n/a n/a
TER i
Wong Tsz Ho TR 4/8 212 11 n/a n/a
TNEA i
Board members were provided with complete, adequate and ZEZEKXEERETE EEMEENE

timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors
in advance. Notice of at least seven days is given for a regular
Board meeting. For other Board and committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. Board papers together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are
dispatched to all Directors at least three days before each
regular Board meeting to ensure that the Directors have
sufficient time to review the related documents and be
adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to all Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are
open for Director’s inspection.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

All directors, including Independent Non-Executive Directors,
should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as
Directors and of the business and activities of the Group.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the Code during the period from the date
of listing to 31 March 2014, that all Directors had participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills.

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is according to the records provided
by the Directors as follows:
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MR NIEE -

PREZWRESH LT HIE201453

A318 M E E<F-FRIMFANEFEA6.5

f|7r< BEC2ESESELRRE  URH LY
R BT AR e

RESEFRT 2L EFNEE2014
FIA3IB LFEMERZHFIIBMIT

Reading newspaper, Reading
Updates relating to materials
Attending the economy, relevant to
the seminar, accounting, directors’
conference or rules, law or duties and
forum regulation, etc. responsibilities
HREE BBEEE-
2 mmeE - B3 KBl EESR HEHESNBE
Directors £ eRNRE ERENBRHER RETEBRHMH
Executive Directors: HITES :
Ho Ying Cheung ] FEFE v v v
Ho Ying Choi o] FE B v v V4
Non-executive Director: FFHITESE :
Kam Tak Yeung eHEE v Ve v
Independent Non- BIYFHITES !
executive Directors:
Cheung Kwong Wai RAIE v Ve v
Tong Sze Chung BRI v/ / 4
Wong Tsz Ho "R v v v
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CQBPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The audit committee is currently composed of the 3
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tong Sze
Chung (chairman), Mr. Wong Tsz Ho and Mr. Cheung Kwong
Wai.

During the year under view, 2 audit committee meetings were
held.

The function of the Audit Committee includes the following:
(i)  Relationship with the Company’s auditors:

(a) to be primarily responsible for make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Audit Committee should discuss with
the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(c)

to develop and implement policy on engaging and
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For
this purpose, “external auditor’ includes any entity
that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to
be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on ay
matters where action or improvement is needed.

(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information:

(a)

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and/or quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and
practices;

(2) major judgmental areas;
(3) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(4) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(5) compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures:

(a) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors for the year ended 31 March 2014. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year and recommended approval to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with GEM Listing
Rules. The remuneration committee is currently composed of
1 executive Director and 2 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ho Ying Choi, Mr. Tong Sze Chung
(chairman) and Mr. Wong Tsz Ho.

The remuneration committee’s principal duties are the
determination of specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities.

The remuneration committee meets regularly to determine
the policy for the remuneration of Directors and assess the
performance of executive Directors and certain senior
management of the Company. During the year under review,
1 remuneration committee meeting was held to review the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management
of the Company. All members of the Remuneration Committee
attended the meeting.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Remuneration of Directors

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Directors’ fees and all other emoluments paid or payable
to the Directors during the year are set out on an individual
and named basis in note 15(a) to the Consolidated Statements
of this Annual Report on page 104.

Remuneration of Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:
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Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the
5 highest paid employees are set out out in Note 15(b) to
the financial statements on page 105.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a nomination committee which is is
currently composed of 2 executive Directors and 3 independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Ying Cheung
(chairman), Mr. Ho Ying Choi, Mr. Tong Sze Chung, Mr. Wong
Tsz Ho and Mr. Cheung Kwong Wai.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are mainly:

(i)  toreview of the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at lease annually;

(i) to make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become the Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on selection of individuals
nominated for directorships of the Company;

(iii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(iv) to review and recommend the appointment of new
directors;

(v) to identify the competences required to enable the Board
to fulfill its responsibilities; and

(vi) to review the Board Diversity Policy established for
implementing diversity on the Board periodically.

Subsequent to 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this
report, one meeting of the nomination committee was held
to review the structure, composition of the Board, adoption
of the Board Diversity Policy and the appointment of Director
and senior management. All members of the nomination
committee attended the meeting.

During the Relevant Period, no meeting of the nomination
committee was held.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee is a committee under the
Company’s audit committee and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ying
Choi, the chief executive officer and comprises Mr. Lau Ping
Kwai, the associate director (note), Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the
associate director (note) and Mr. Cheng Kam Hung, the
financial controller. The Group’s legal adviser, Y.C. Lee Pang,
Kwok & Ip Solicitors, is procured to provide legal advices and
to attend the committee meeting on need basis. For the year
ended 31 March 2014, 11 meetings were held and the legal
adviser had participated in two meetings. The minutes of the
meetings were distributed to the legal adviser, Y.C. Lee, Pang,
Kwok & Ip Solicitors, and the audit committee members for
scrutiny and comment. The committee addresses the matters
concerning the compliance of law and regulations, contract
terms and litigation cases of the Group.

SAFETY COMMITTEE

To raise the management’s awareness of the health and safety
in the workplace, the Group formed a safety committee
comprising Mr. Fong Shek Hung, the associate director (note)
of KSU, and Mr. Law Kwok Leung, a senior property manager
of KSU, eight other committee members from (i) property
management department; (ii) cleaning department; (iii)
security department; (iv) maintenance department; and (v)
administration department, and two members appointed by
the Safety Consultant. Among eight of the ten members who
are the Group’s staff, at least five members, including Mr.
Fong Shek Hung and Mr. Law Kwok Leung, have more than
ten years of experience in property management while the
other two members have more than fifteen years of experience
in cleaning and maintenance services industry.

Note: The position “associate director” is a corporate title only and not a
“director” within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the GEM Listing Rules. An associate
director named herein is principally responsible for (i) the supervision
of property management of the Group or its staff; (ii) supervision of the
Group’s administration or overall standard; and (iii) the Group’s customer
relations.
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SAFETY COMMITTEE (continued)

The responsibilities of the safety committee are, among other
things, to establish the Group’s workplace health and safety
management system, formulate and implement the internal
health and safety policies, and arrange staff trainings. The
safety committee holds monthly meetings to review the
effectiveness of the system. The Group engages an external
safety consultancy firm (the “Safety Consultant”) for the review
and recommendation in respect of safety in buildings managed
by the Group. For the year ended 31 March 2014, the
committee held nine meetings and 29 buildings or estates
were reviewed by the Safety Consultant.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of annual audit and non-audit services
of the Group provided by World Link CPA Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:
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2014

20144

HK$000

FAET

Audit service ZERTE 574

Non-audit services: HEZERT

~Services provided in connection with Initial public —BRBIARNRAR &R AFEERMAN

offering of the Company AR 1,448

Total At 2,022

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 were audited by World Link CPA Limited whose
term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that World Link CPA Limited be re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company Secretary
was Mr. Tsui Siu Hung, Raymond (“Mr. Tsui”), a fellow
member of the Association of the Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant, and he is also the primary corporate contact
person at the Company. The Company is of the view that Mr.
Tsui has compiled with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
During the reporting period, Mr. Tsui undertook over 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update his skill and
knowledge in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry
in respect of the Company in writing to our Head Office at
Unit L, 1/F, Kaiser Estate, Phase 2, 51 Man Yue Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the
Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by
means of requisition convene an EGM following the procedures
set out above.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure that
the internal control measures are in place to safeguard the
Group’s assets and to comply with relevant regulations and
best practices.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, since the date of listing
there is no significant change in its constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and
the responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders
are set out on page 65 to 66. The directors of the Company
have confirmed that the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements is in compliance with the relative regulations and
applicable accounting standards.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built
on ethics and integrity and increasing shareholders value as
a whole.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of Kong Shum Union Property Management
(Holding) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

A discussion of the Group’s performance and its financial
position are provided in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year end 31 March 2014
and the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014
are set out on pages 67 to 68.

The state of affairs of the Company is set out in note 28 to
the financial statement on page 125.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTIONS

The final dividend of HK5 cents per share of the Company
for the Reporting Period to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on 4 August
2014 has been proposed by the Directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on or around
8 August 2014.

CLOSURE OF MEMBERS REGISTER

To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the meeting, the Register of Members will be closed from
Wednesday, 23 July 2014 to Friday, 25 July 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares can be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
meeting, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrars, Union Registrars Limited, 18/F Fook Lee
Commercial Centre, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, 22 July 2014.
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CLOSURE OF MEMBERS REGISTER (continued)

To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the Register of Members will be closed from
Friday, 1 August 2014 to Monday, 4 August 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares can be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers
of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars,
Union Registrars Limited, 18/F Fook Lee Commercial Centre,
Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 31 July
2014.

THREE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities of
the Group for the last three financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 136. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles and association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 69 and in note
28 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2014,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law,
amounted to HK$49,000,582 (2013: Loss HK%$4,965,106)
including share premium of HK$28,838,055 and retained
earnings of HK$20,162,527.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Ying Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 August 2012)
Mr. Ho Ying Choi (appointed on 15 August 2012)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kam Tak Yeung (appointed on 19 September 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwong Wai (appointed on 19 September 2013)
Mr. Tong Sze Chung (appointed on 19 September 2013)
Mr. Wong Tsz Ho (appointed on 19 September 2013)

In accordance with articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors will retire and, being eligible, two
executive directors, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying
Choi will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on page 25 to
33 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed
for an initial term of three year commencing from their
respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter
from year to year until terminated by two month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other party.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group as well as the
recommendation of the remuneration committee. Further
details of the Company’s remuneration committee are set out
in the corporate governance report on page 46 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the paragraph “Connected Transaction”
on pages 60 to 61 of annual report, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees employed. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June
2012). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. Total
contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$9.1 million and HK$8.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013
respectively, which had been recognized as expenses and
included in staff costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits beyond the contributions as described
above.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2014, the interest and short position of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Long positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

EERETETBRAERAEQARE
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Percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares share capital
HARREE
=y B RERME B BB BITREBOL
(Note 1)
(Krit1)
Ho Ying Cheung (note 2) Beneficial interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 (L) 75%
IR (Hfi2) REGEENE R E R 300,000,000 (L) 75%
Ho Ying Choi (note 2) Beneficial interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 (L) 75%
{AIRERt (ff772) REGNEENE SRR 300,000,000 (L) 75%

Note:

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in
the share capital of the Company.

2. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying Choi both Executive Directors of
the Company owned 40% and 60% of the shares in Topgrow Holdings
Limited respectively. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying Choi are
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Topgrow Holdings Limited
under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers
as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save for the Reorganisation, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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FERRREMALRERTRS
RAERRONERR AR

2014F3A318  THAL(RARES
HEZTHABBRIN AR TG &R
PR IREE S R EIEH 553368078
FEMELMACHEAOESIAR ¢

Long positions e
Ordinary shares of the Company ARAAZBER
Percentage of the
Company’s Issued
Name Capacity and the nature of interest Number of shares share capital
EARARE
=y BN RERME BRHEE BITREBSL
(note 1)
(Hzt1)
Topgrow Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 300,000,000 (L) 75%
Topgrow Holdings Limited  B#XH#EA A 300,000,000 (L) 75%
Ho Ying Cheung (note 2) Beneficial interest in Controlled corporation 300,000,000 (L) 75%
R (Hi22) REHEENES S 300,000,000 (L) 75%
Ho Ying Choi (note 2) Beneficial interest in Controlled corporation 300,000,000 (L) 75%
IRt (Mzt2) REHEENE m s 300,000,000 (L) 75%
Note: Hiet -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in 1. [L] B ERA AR GIRA R BRI R

the share capital of the Company.

2. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying Choi both Executive Directors of
the Company owned 40% and 60% of the shares in Topgrow Holdings
Limited respectively. Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying Choi are
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Topgrow Holdings Limited
under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

2. WERTERMAEMEEHBARNRNRITE
%= 9 Bl ¥ B Topgrow HoldingsLimited40%
N60%M% 17 1R & 75 % I B3 & 14 i 38XVER -
{a] JE ¥ 2t A T2 {A] JE B 5t A 4 1R B A Topgrow
Holdings Limited#58 8IR% (5 o B 4 o

br EXFr#FEE SN PA2014F3 3118 - #i
BmARRNE RO KA PO EMERE
AR IR AR BIRIEEH KBS XS
F336HAFEMETLMA -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 19 September 2013 which will remain in force
for a period of 10 years from the effective date of the Scheme
and will expire on 10 October 2023. The principal terms of
the Scheme are summarized in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, no share option was
granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there is no
outstanding share option under the Scheme.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s board of Directors. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board of
Directors to enhance the quality of its performance. The details
of the policy are available on the Company’s website.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, Ample
Capital Limited, as at 31 March 2014, except for (i) Ample
Capital Limited’s participation as the sponsor and its affiliated
company, Ample Orient Capital Limited as the lead manager
in relation to the Listing; and (ii) the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and Ample
Capital Limited dated 27 September 2013, neither Ample
Capital Limited or its directors, employees or associates had
any interest in relation to the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2014 is contained
in Note 22 and Note 30 to the consolidated annual results.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions

On 7 March 2013, More Rise Investment Limited (“More
Rise”), as the owner of the Tuen Mun office and storage
property in Hong Kong, and KSU entered into a rental
agreement (the “Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement”) under
which the Tuen Mun office and storage property in Hong
Kong is leased to KSU for a term of one year from 1 April
2013 to 31 March 2014 at a monthly rental of HK$21,000.
For each of the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the
aggregate rent paid by KSU to More Rise in respect of the
Tuen Mun office and storage property were HK$252,000 and
HK$156,000 respectively.

Pursuant to Rule 20.33(3)(c) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
transactions under the Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement are
exempted from the reporting, annual review announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of the
transactions under the Tuen Mun Office Lease Agreement.

For the purposes of facilitating banking facilities arrangements,
prior to the Listing, KSU and Q&V have issued unlimited cross
guarantees to a bank dated 21 August 2012 and 6 September
2010 respectively in respect of the banking facilities granted
to the Group and two companies, Fortune Trend Investment
Limited and More Rise, that are jointly owned by Mr. Ho Ying
Choi and Mr. Ho Ying Cheung, the Group’s executive Directors.
No consideration was given. The release of the guarantees
in favour of the two companies has been approved by the
bank after the Listing.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 19 September
2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”) given by Mr. Ho Ying
Choi, Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Topgrow Holdings Limited
(collectively the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company and
set out in Prospectus, the Covenantors made the annual
declaration on the compliance with the Deed of Non-
competition in this annual report as follows:
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (continued)

(a)

(c)

(d)

each of the Covenantors has not, and has procured each
of his/its associates and/or companies controlled by him/
it, which carries on a business which is, or be interested
or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any rights
or interest or otherwise not to be involved in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or
indirectly with the business currently and from time to
time engaged by the Group (the “Restricted Business”);

if each of the Covenantors and/or any of his/its associates
is offered or becomes aware of any project or new
business opportunity (“New Business Opportunity”) that
relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or
indirectly, he/it would (i) promptly within seven business
days notify the Group in writing of such opportunity and
provide such information as is reasonably required by
the Group in order to enable the Group to come to an
informed assessment of such opportunity; and (ii) use
his/its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity
is offered to the Group on terms no less favourable than
the terms on which such opportunity is offered to him/
it and/or his/its associates. During the year each of the
Covenantors and/or any of his/its associates was not
offered or became aware of any such New Business
Opportunity;

each of the Covenantors provided the Group and the
Directors from time to time (including the independent
non-executive Directors) with all information necessary
for the annual review by the independent non-executive
Directors with regard to compliance of the terms of the
Deed of Non-competition and the enforcement of the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-
competition;

each of the Covenantors did not invest or participate in
any project or business opportunity that competes or
may compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
activities engaged by the Group from time to time;

each of the Covenantors did not solicit any existing or
then existing employee of the Group for employment by
him/it or his/its associates (excluding the Group);
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (continued)

(f) each of the Covenantors did not without the consent
from the Group, make use of any information pertaining
to the business of the Group which may have come to
his/its knowledge in his/its capacity as the controlling
shareholder of the Company for any purposes; and

(g) each of the Covenantors did procure his/its associates
(excluding the Group) not to invest or participate in any
project or business opportunity mentioned above, unless
pursuant to the provisions stipulated in the Deed of Non-
competition.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the year are as follows:
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cleaning

Revenue subcontracting
Wi BREDE
HK$ HK$
BT 7T

The largest customer SUNY=

Five largest customers in aggregate hREFAaGT

The largest supplier =AM ER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAREEE AT

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

14,007,557 N/A i@ H
51,564,842 N/A i@ A
N/A 3@ 5,379,433

N/A 3@ 12,619,492
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the controlling shareholders or Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
is interested in any business apart from the business operated
by the Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on
pages 34 to b52.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
World Link CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Ying Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong
20 June 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

World Link CPA Limited

To the shareholders of
Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kong
Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 135, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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N

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Ngan Hing Hon

Practising Certificate Number — P05294

Hong Kong, 20 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEERRkEtEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

2014 2013

2014% 2013%

Notes HK$ HK$

Hiat BT BT

Revenue Ik = 9 324,981,419 284,062,524

Cost of services AR 7 B AR (258,781,554) (231,763,752)

Gross profit EF 66,199,865 52,298,772

Other income/(expenses), net Hale A (FY) F58 10 279,302 273

Administrative expenses TR (37,980,447) (30,422,370)

Other operating expenses BB (19,774,608) (13,084,499)

Finance costs Bl & KA 11 (1,104,542) (1,559,010)

Profit before taxation R %% A % 12 7,619,570 7,233,166

Income tax expense Fris®if X 13 (2,591,189) (1,663,718)
Profit and total comprehensive income Z& 2 T#EHE A G FERE

for the year attributable to owners of MR 2EBALE

the Company 5,028,381 5,569,448

Earnings per share-basic BREFN-EX 14 0.014 0.019

Earnings per share-diluted BRER -#8 14 NA REA  N/A TEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2014 201443 H31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$ HK$
Hat BT BT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K&t 17 2,067,728 3,043,748
Deposits placed for life insurance HEASREBREFTAN
policies B 19 7,526,068 3,814,900
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEE 20 2,233,910 2,022,304
11,827,706 8,880,952
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables g5 &k E bl zkIE 21 52,370,304 52,942,537
Amounts due from directors U E E I8 22(a) - 6,081,968
Amount due from ultimate holding JE S ARIERR ARIFIE  22(b)
company - 503,716
Amounts due from related parties JiE I B8 Bt 5 s 0E 22(c) - 15,371,221
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITIER 23 15,896,023 15,666,435
Cash and bank balances Re KBTS 23 35,899,808 5,576,540
104,166,135 96,142,417
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 hE MR FRIE 24 41,610,134 38,021,416
Amount due to a director JE —RESFFHIA 22(e) - 437,235
Amount due to a related party [~ — 24 BB 5 508 22(f) - 6,186,686
Obligations under finance leases R E A EAIE 25 352,644 388,194
Income tax payable e PTIS A 926,649 175,349
Bank borrowings — secured IRITIEE —FEA 26 19,333,599 38,807,358
62,223,026 84,016,238
Net current assets REEEFE 41,943,109 12,126,179
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAS 53,770,815 21,007,131
Non-current liabilities FnRBERE
Obligations under finance leases & EARIE 25 203,696 556,340
Net assets EEFE 53,567,119 20,450,791
Capital and reserves R #E
Share Capital (LN 27 4,000,000 4,750,108
Reserves s 49,567,119 15,700,683
Total equity A 53,567,119 20,450,791

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 135
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 20 June 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

Ho Ying Cheung
fAPER
Director

EE

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

Share Share Merger Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BAE  BRHEE SHEE REEF &t
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ik BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2012 R2012%4818 3,320,100 - - 15,131,235 18,451,335
Profit and total FRaRMEZEKA
comprehensive income for 4%
the year - - - 5569448 5,569,448
Dividend to equity holders  [fRIERHE A DK
RE 29 - - - (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Issue of shares of the BOMBARRAR
subsidiaries and the Al
Company 1,430,008 - - - 1,430,008
As at 31 March 2013 and  W2013%3831H K
1 April 2013 201354818 4,750,108 - - 15,700,683 20,450,791
Arising from the REAREE
Reorganisation 27(b)  (4,750,108) - 4,750,108 - -
Capitalisation issue EXRLRT 27(e) 3,000,000 (3,000,000) = = =
Placing of shares &R A 217(f) 1,000,000 32,000,000 - - 33,000,000
Expenses incurred in REERNEEZ
connection with the 353
placing of shares - (4,912,053) - (4,912,053)
Profit and total ERENRZERA
comprehensive income for b
the year - - - 5,028,381 5,028,381
As at 31 March 2014 2014538310 4,000,000 24,087,047 4,750,108 20,729,064 53,567,119
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$ HK$
Hiat BT BIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax B 75 A v A 7,619,570 7,233,166
Adjustments for: MTINFEELFAE
Listing expenses EmHEX 6,529,809 4,321,350
Depreciation of property, plant and M WERREITE
equipment 17 1,418,751 1,102,334
Interest income F 2 WA (245,464) (114,447)
Premium charged on life insurance AR R B FTUCER
policies ik 280,199 258,513
Interest expense FEFRX 11 1,104,542 1,559,010
Loss on disposal of financial assets HESMEERE - 123,653
Operating cash flows before movements ZZEEELEBANKER
in working capital ERhE 16,707,407 14,483,579
Movement in working capital LBEESTREY
elements:
Increase in trade and other B 5 & E b W FRIE
receivables =Dl (868,217)  (8,067,728)
Increase in trade and other B 5 R HA R IR
payables il 3,588,718 1,424,731
Cash generated from operations REELECHS 19,427,908 7,840,582
Interest paid EATFE 11 (1,104,542) (1,559,010)
Income tax paid EATTER (2,051,495) (3,932,684)
Net cash generated from operating RETHFAESRSFE
activities 16,271,871 2,348,888
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRBRASRE
ACTIVITIES
Payment for acquisition of property, WHEMZE - BB kil
plant and equipment SORNES (442,731) (879,300)
Increase in pledged bank deposits EEMRIRITEFIG AN (229,588) (10,259,352)
Payment of deposits placed for life MASRBRREFT AR
insurance policies e A NE 19 (3,748,955) (3,961,680)
Interest received B AR 10 3,052 2,714
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHFTARSFE (4,418,222) (15,097,618)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

llv_\éiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ%

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$ HK$
Hiat BT BIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHAERERE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in amount due JE W B 4R AR A R
from ultimate holding company BR AL, (1En) 503,716 (5,938)
Decrease in amounts due from & AL (B8 B 2 R SRR R
related parties A 15,371,221 9,037,701
Decrease in amount due to a related  FEf—% BEH4 75 208
party Ve (6,186,686) -
Increase in amounts due from JE W E S5 SR IEE AN
directors = (6,222,469)
e —BESFRIER
Decrease in amount due to a director o (437,235) (2,062,765)
New bank loans raised EEMRITEK - 30,302,800
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (12,394,229) (6,507,344)
Proceeds from issue of shares by B AR RARAE
subsidiaries and the Company 1TR% D FT 1S 3RIR - 1,430,008
Proceeds from placing of shares ficd & B 170 BT 15 5k 18 33,000,000 -
Expenses incurred in connection with  FECERMHELE 2
the placing of shares 53 (4,912,053) -
Loans from/(repayment of loans to) BEEZER(EEES
directors g0 6,081,968 (18,060,004)
Repayments of finance lease EERMENE (388,194) (245,826)
Payment of Listing expenses XA EmRX (5,089,359)  (1,440,450)
Net cash generated from financing RMEEE SRS T
activities 25,549,149 6,225,713
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH IR&KIRSEEWLM,
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R ) F5E 37,402,798 (6,523,017)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRELREEEED
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (2,635,362) 3,887,655
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRRERESEZEYD
END OF THE YEAR 34,767,436 (2,635,362)
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RekReZEEBYHIT
EQUIVLENTS CONSIST OF Bt
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHE R 23 35,899,808 5,576,540
Bank overdrafts RITEX 26 (1,132,372)  (8,211,902)
34,767,436 (2,635,362)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 15 August 2012, as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
located at Unit L, 1/F., Kaiser Estate, Phase 2, No. 51
Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on GEM on 11 October
2013 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of property
management services. The details and particulars of
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 18.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Through a reorganisation to rationalise the structure of
the Listing of the Company’s shares (the “Reorganisation”),
the Company has since 8 August 2013 become the
holding company of the Group as the entire interest of
the Group’s subsidiaries were transferred to the Company
by way of swap of shares. Details of the Reorganisation
are fully explained in the paragraphs headed the
“Reorganisation” of the section headed “History,
Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 30 September 2013 (the
“Prospectus”) in connection with the Listing.

As the companies now comprising the Group were
controlled by Mr Ho Ying Cheung and Mr Ho Ying Choi
(the “Controlling Shareholders”) before and after the
Reorganisation, the Reorganisation was accounted for as
a business combination of entities under common control.
The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
based on the principles and procedures of merger
accounting in accordance with the Accounting Guideline
5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Accordingly, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows are prepared as if
the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the reporting years rather than from the date
of incorporation of the Company.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to
its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 April 2013. The collective term of HKFRSs
comprises Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”), and
Interpretations.

The Group has not early applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is
not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention and are presented
in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires the
directors to exercise its judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these financial statements,
are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements. The
significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Foreign currencies

4.2 HpEk

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Groups’ entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group’s and the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

In preparing financial statements of each individual
group entities, transactions in currencies other than
the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchanges rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture and fixtures 10%
Motor vehicles 25%-30%
Office equipment 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at the end of each reporting period.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets.
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BRBAVMEEE(BR)BERLT

4. EXEFBE(E)

4.3 ¥ BERRE

ME  BE MR B TIERAER
RETrEME MR EERYIK-
ME BEEREBEEBHKR
B BREBEEBNMEZREE
EEIRE L E RN E ARR
H 5 E A i e (] B3R B G X
Ko BB MFREERBNE
FEREEN L BREER
REETDNELR T AZ R
B R A RIS AlAF
BEIEERNXEIREENR
EEFENMCSEE - HOFE-
BELRBNEZRDATKE
B ARNEERERZERDR
A 7 B2 A B 12 ELAROR A
HirgE-

MEDEAERERNEBEDE
R 5 e 3 e T8 B (il 51 ] (52 R 5 &
A H A ANl 85 = H R BRE(E -
REBNFRERNEEZF RN
T

HEYEEE 20%
RERREE 10%
! 25%Z%30%
N 25%

E—IEYE BEIKREEE®
BEEHBE TR AEAFE  Z
BHSEHDHRAESBERS
B2 - i & 2515 1% 1E 8 B 37 & - F
BREE  AERFHMTE R X
ELREREPHRETHRTMNE
E(EE )

BERARERENEET R
T AT 4 R B S B A A
FEEA S H AT -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.3

4.4

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of financial assets
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (continued) 45 €@MIA(HE)

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, deposit placed for a life
insurance policy, amount due from ultimate holding
company, amounts due from related parties,
amounts due from directors, pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected. Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation;
or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (continued)

45 @I EA(E)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
from an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amount due to a director, amount due to
a related party, loan from directors, obligations
under finance leases and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

—  the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight- line basis over the terms of the
guarantee contracts.

Derecognition

The Group derecognised a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
assets, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

4.5

4.6

4.7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.8

4.9

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value recognised in the profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fee paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the drawn-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn-down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Borrowing costs

4.11

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.11 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the assets is
realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, expect when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination,
the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

Defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employee’s basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flow estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

4.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided that
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and the costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Property management services income

Revenue from property management services
are recognised when services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the agreements.
Revenue from the provision of other supporting
service for the management of the property is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, BEREFBE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Leasing 415 HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Operating leases payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) bhas control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.17 Bank balances in client accounts

Certain bank accounts were opened and held in
the name of a subsidiary of the Group on behalf
of some customers. Such bank accounts are
regarded as client accounts held on behalf of third
parties and were not recognised as assets and
associated liabilities in the financial statements of
the Group.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4 to the financial statements,
management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on past experience, expectations of the future
and other information that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods of the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting
period.

4. BEXEFBE(E)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

5.1

5.2

5.8

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables
based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade receivables, including the aging analysis of
the trade debts, the current creditworthiness and/
or the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairment arises where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debt requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will have impact on the
carrying value of the trade receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the reporting period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant
and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are certain
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)
5.4 Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or
whether the event previously causing the impairment
no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area impairment, particularly in
assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value, or such an event affecting
the asset value has not been in existence; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash
flows, which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could have
a material effect on the net present value used in
the impairment test.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes the obligations under finance leases and
bank borrowings as disclosed in notes to the financial
statements respectively, net of bank balances and cash,
and equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. The Group considers the cost of
capital and risk associated with each class of capital,
and will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, repayment of amount due to an
intermediate holding Group, issuance of new shares as
well as the raising of new debts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that
for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.
The Group receives reports from the share registrars
regularly on substantial share interests showing the non-
public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance

EXEmEE(E)

AN 65 (B 4 35 HL R B A2 BT b T A A M
—HNEBREINEY B AR B R AR ERE AR
BELBURNBARERE - A&
ETrHRERN B ERLERHAR
& ARV RIERAREHRENE AR
D ZREBRTAER S LHE
548 1B <F25% ) BR B © B £20144F3

with the 25% limit since the Listing. As of 31 March
2014, 25% of the Company’s shares are in public hands.

A318 AR EH25% 7 B 2 R

Ao
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. T®MIA
7.1 Financial instruments by category 71 ERIANSSE
Categories of the Group’s financial instruments at AEBEREMERRNEMTE
the end of the reporting period and as follows: DEEWE -
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: TREE
Loans and receivables BRI RIR
(including cash and cash (RIEREERESE
equivalents): EY):
Deposits placed for life insurance BASRBREFTA
policies WiRe 7,526,068 3,814,900
Trade and other receivables ZHNEMEWRFIE 52,370,304 52,942 537
Amounts due from directors fEUNE E 518 - 6,081,968
Amounts due from related parties & Wt BA Bk 5 s 0B - 15,371,221
Amount due from ultimate holding JE W B AR AR AR A B K
company 18 - 503,716
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER 15,896,023 15,666,435
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTH R 35,899,808 5,576,540
Financial liabilities: cRasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: IREESEAANHEN 7L
afE:
Trade and other payables BHNHMEMNTIE 41,610,134 38,021,416
Amount due to a director B —RESERIE - 437,235
Amount due to a related party eI — & BEEst 5 5B - 6,186,686
Bank borrowings- secured RITEE - FEM 19,333,599 38,807,358

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. E@MIA(E)
7.2 Financial risk management and fair values 7.2 BEREBEERAAE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks; foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
maximise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(i)  Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as part of its assets are
denominated in United States dollars (“US$”).

The following tables detail the Group’s major
exposure at the end of the reporting periods
to foreign currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong
Kong dollars, translated using the spot rates
at the end of the reporting periods.

AREBEXB RS ETFER
SMNERR - EERR  RBES
R e e ) o L B o AN SR L ) B BB
RgEEAEETRERTHH
ANA] FEORIE Ko T SR G AN 5% [ ) B
BREALBEINEERER
(i9

() IMERME

HRARENEENAET
([ETXDINE BHAEBETE
AR ETINERR o

TREFFHAEEEAINEET
BENEEREEXBBEL
NI BAR AT ) BINE
BBz 25 B AUBTT
B 7R A P RS HR R o RO HAE
RPENRBR S -

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BIT

Deposits placed for life insurance FAZRBRREFAN
policies Be

The following table indicates the instantaneous
changes in the Group’s profit for the year that
would have arisen if foreign exchange rates
(HK$ vs. US$) to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
periods had changed at those dates, assuming
all other risk variables remained constant.

7,526,068 3,814,900

MRBERBRRAA EMRAR
BERFITE  NEERR
FHIRAR EXE Y E R
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

7.2 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

7. émﬂlﬂ(nﬁ)
7.2 BERABEERAAEGE)

(i)

SHEE i i ()

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2014 2013
2014% 20134
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
foreign profit for in foreign profit for
exchange rates the year exchange rates the year
E=x F R F b = F Nz A
EH (TR &, ORd) EA TR #m, CRd)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HK$ 7T 0.1/ 752,606/ 0.1/ 381,490/
HK$ A&7 (0.1) (752,606) (0.1) (381,490)
Credit risk (i) FERE
The carrying amounts of the pledged bank RE MBI RARRYIBE
deposits, cash and bank balances and trade ERBRITFR RE RIET

and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk,
as trade receivables from the five largest
debtors of the Group as at 31 March 2014
accounted for 12.3% (2013: 11.1%) of total
trade receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
services are provided to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Amounts due from
related parties are closely monitored by the
directors.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and
cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. E@MIA(E)
7.2 Financial risk management and fair 7.2 BEREBEERAAEGE)
values (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (i) TEELEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor RNEBE KK T BB Al
current and expected liquidity requirements to NI REES TR N
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of WREAEFABHESHEE
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the NENEREHRHEESS
short and longer term. Ko
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial AEFECREENRBOHT
liabilities is as follows: W
On demand More than Total
or 1 year hut Contractual
within less than More than  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years cash flow Amount
REXS BB1F EHEER: 3]
—-FUR BERSE SELE BERELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B B B
2014 2014F

Trade and other payahles ~ EZREMEMATE 41,610,134 -
Bank loans subject to a WEEEZRERK

41,610,134 41,610,134

repayment on demand RNRTER
clause 19,333,599 - - 19,333599 19,333,599
Obligations under finance ~ BERERIE
leases 373,032 207,165 - 580,197 556,340
61,316,765 207,165 - 61,523,930 61,500,073
On demand More than Total
or 1 year but Contractual
within less than More than  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years cash flow Amount
BREKRH BELF BATARAR
—F0A BERSE SENLE HeRsHE REME
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT B
2013 2013F
Trade and other payables ~ EZREMENTE 38,021,416 = - 38021416 38021416

Amount due to a director B —REZFE 437,235 -
Amount due to a related party BN —Z @B A ZE 6,186,686 -

437,235 437,235
6,186,686 6,186,686

Bank loans subject to a WEREEREZE

repayment on demand FRRTER

clause 38,807,358 - - 38,807,358 38,807,358

Obligations under finance ~ RBMEALE

leases 434,706 580,197 - 1,014,903 944 534
83887401 580197 - 84467598 84,397,229
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. TRITA(E)

10

7.2 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
from its bank borrowings. These items bear
interest at variable rates varied with the then
prevailing market condition.

It is estimated that a general increase/
(decrease) of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would
have (decreased)/increased the Group’s profit

7.2 BHEBREERQIABEGE)

(iv) FIF @B

AEENAZERITEEE
ERMEREE ZFREE
FEIMRE B MRIZE R
MRME °

B EME KT
BIER T - fhETF R B

A (T#) bOEED, A&
ENF RGN e CRd), 1

for the year as follows: g
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates F=E 5 ()

50 basis points 5O & B, (96,668) (194,037)
(50) basis points (50) & E 24 96,668 194,037

(v) Fair values (v) ARHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial

RAMBANRAEANEE

assets and financial liabilities as reflected in mﬂé%&‘i\rﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
the consolidated statement of financial position Tﬁﬁﬁi/ﬁ BRI AR ERE
approximate their respective fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. TEER

The Group currently operates in one operating segment
which is property management services. A single
management team reports to the Group’s chief operating

AEBEBAEE—EKLEDE Y
XEERB -BE-EREBRRNAEHE
MEBLERRERSE TELER

decision-maker who allocates resources and assesses REBBEEFERBEGNGAESED
performance based on the consolidated result for the e B R LT 2E4E - At - NEE I &

year for the entire business comprehensively. Accordingly,
the Group does not present separate segment information.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major services
is set out in note 9 below. No customer accounted for
10 per cent or more of the total revenue for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

During the two years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,
all revenue is derived from customers in Hong Kong and
the Group’s non-current assets as at 31 March 2014
and 2013 are located in Hong Kong.

REVENUE 9.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
property management services during the year. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue recognised during the
years is as follows:

7 ERE R ()

# 220144 %201343A31 A 1L {E
FE ABRSHREBFEETS MR
20144F 201343 A31H * 7 & @ &
FRBEEIUNEL

Wz

ENAEEIBRERAYLEE
BRI - 4 PO 7 42 (8 40 B R RN 25 A
mF

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Provision of property management services IE{t¥% & IR RS

324,981,419 284,062,524

OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET 10. Hablk A (BAxX) B5E
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Bank interest income IRITH B U A 3,052 2,714
Gain from foreign exchange contract INE B KR P W
transactions - 7,750
Interest income from deposits placed for FEASZRBREFAN
life insurance policies B2 B WA 242,412 111,733
Loss on disposals of financial assets HEEMEENEE - (123,653)
Sundry income HMIEWA 33,838 1,729
279,302 273
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @EK A
2014 2013
2014% 2013%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: T3 & BRI A E
Bank borrowings wholly repayable E’\ﬁiﬁq%%ﬁﬂaﬁﬂ’]
within five years RITIEE 952,861 1,166,763
Loans from directors E=EX 109,195 374,285
Finance lease charges MEHEER 42,486 17,962
1,104,542 1,559,010
12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRBEADER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the BRA AR A T H0BR T 5B E -
following:
2014 2013
201445 2013%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Auditor’s remuneration % B AT B & 573,504 100,000
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERRETE
equipment 1,418,751 1,102,334
Operating lease rentals in respect of EHEEMENKEHEE
rented premises 1,976,270 1,677,030
Staff costs including directors’ BIRAN(BEESEH)
remuneration (note 15) (H1a£15)
— salaries, wages and other benefits —%e LTENHAEMEN 264,976,482 232,041,714
— contributions to retirement benefit — AR RAE R B3R
scheme 9,107,107 8,483,626

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

13. FIEHMAX

16.5% (20134 : 16.5% ) {EHi 4 -

profits.
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
7T 7B IT
Current income tax BVEART 15350
Hong Kong profits tax BBEFEH
— Provision for the year — F N 2,911,317 2,048,386
— Over-provision in prior years —IBEFEEERE (108,522) (32,848)
2,802,795 2,015,538
Deferred tax assets (note 20) BRI EE (H1:F20)
— Origination and reversal of —HREEN R R
temporary differences B El (244,225) (351,820)
— Over-provision in prior years — B FEBERE 32,619 =
2,591,189 1,663,718

A reconciliation between the Group’s income tax expense
and accounting profit, at applicable tax rate is set out

AEERERRENAEHANE
OB BRI T

below:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before taxation BR A% AT 4 A 7,619,570 7,233,166
Notional tax on profit before taxation, % B AR R16.5%:1 & /Y
calculated at current tax rate of 16.5% B 7% A& A1) B B & B8
(2013: 16.5%) (20134 : 16.5%) 1,257,229 1,193,471
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HUR A S M B IR R 2 1,548,114 971,426
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue B ARG S AR I 2 (138,251) (36,812)
Tax effect of temporary difference not RIERE R = ZE A 55 18
recognised e - (431,519)
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (75,903) (32,848)
Income tax expense FriStiA X 2,591,189 1,663,718
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

14.

15.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 of
HK$5,028,381 (2013: HK$5,569,448), and the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year ended
31 March 2014 of 347,123,288 (2013: 300,000,000
shares in issue, being the number of shares in issue
immediately after the completion of capitalisation issue
as detailed in note 27(e) throughout the year).

The Group did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

14.

BREFN

BRERZN THIEBZE2014F3H31H
IEFENARABEE ARBEERE RF
5,028,381/% JT(20134F : 5,569,448
TT) AR E E2014F3A31B L FE
B2 BT D N 19 81347,123,288
MR (2013 - B % 1T’ 0 B
300,000,0008% - BIFft 5227 (e)Fr it & 5
REEERETEXEBHEEITR
DENE FTE -

B E2014F K2013FE3A31H ILEE
HiM AR WETRESEBEEL R

B o

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 15. EER{EEEHM
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (@) EZHM
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each ENSENEARRSENBRESEH
of the six directors of the Company are as follows: FENFFENT -
2014 20144
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
Directors’ and other benefits
fee benefits scheme Total
ek MEKEF
Exwe HERN  GHEMR &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors: HiTESE:
Ho Ying Choi {7 FE B - 1,836,850 15,000 1,851,850
Ho Ying Cheung A pERE - 1,826,163 15,000 1,841,163
Non-executive Director: FHITES:
Kam Tak Yeung B8 56,774 120,000 - 176,774
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES :
Directors:
Cheung Kwong Wai RAAE 56,774 = = 56,774
Tong Sze Chung EER 68,129 - - 68,129
Wong Tsz Ho BfE 56,774 - - 56,774
238,451 3,783,013 30,000 4,051,464

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBAVMEEE(BR)BERLT



15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

15. EEREEHMN(E)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (continued) () EEFHE(E)
2013 20134
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
Directors’ and other benefits
fee benefits scheme Total
ek REKER
EENE HEH TR B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors: WITESE
Ho Ying Choi {r] fE B - 600,000 57,250 657,250
Ho Ying Cheung Al FEXE - 600,000 61,500 661,500
Non-executive Director: EHITES :
Kam Tak Yeung (Note) E/EME) = - - -
Independent non-executive BY FFHITES
Directors: (Note) (K1:%)
Cheung Kwong Wai RHE - - - -
Tong Sze Chung ERR — — - —
Wong Tsz Ho BTN - - - -
~ 1200000 118,750 1,318,750
Note: ~ Kam Tak Yeung, Cheung Kwong Wai, Tong Sze Chung M. £B8E FAE BRREET

and Wong Tsz Ho were appointed as non-executive
Director or independent non-executive Directors of the
Company respectively on 19 September 2013.

R M20135F9H 190 » Bl #E %
ERARRFFATESNE L

FTES-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

15. EEREEHMN(E)

Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (b) BB SHEHA L HEN
The five highest paid individuals of the Group rEBENAUERFMALE
included two (2013: two) directors of the Company, ¥R (2013 : @& ) AR A
detail of whose emoluments are included in note BE HFHMFBEEHN X
15(a) above. The emolument of the remaining three 15(a) B2 R =#&(2013%F : =5&)
(2013: three) highest paid individuals are as follows: A THEMIT
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$ HK$
7T BT
Salaries and other benefits e KHEAME A 2,185,500 1,777,533
Discretionary or performance related ®15skRIRABRAIEAL
bonus 219,000 196,500
Contributions to retirement benefit MR KRR FI T8I K
scheme 44,850 43,500
2,449,350 2,017,533

The emoluments of each of the above highest paid
individuals in the Group for the years ended 31
March 2014 were below HK$1,000,000.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition,
none of the directors waived any emoluments during
the reporting period (2013: NIL).

16. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes
a profit of HK$25,127,633 (2013: loss HK$4,965,106)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (note 28).

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT

B E£2014F3H31IBLFE -
N SJETE=8 53R N ul=0E= )
K7 1,000,0004 7T ©

ARABREFEFAESTHAMER
= B ST F B - B RE
BARK BN B R R D SRR
fHE- toN MEESNHREH
8 (20134 : &) WEEE(HEM -

16. AR BEE ABGFERF,
(&58)

#H B201453A31H It FE XA
ABEEAEBHEEEMBEERA
A A) B R R R (A AE28) M
#25,127,633% JC(20134F : /&5 18
4,965,106/ 7T )



17. PROPERTY,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. ¥ -BERRE

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvement and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
HENELEE GHAREE BRLERE HRE &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

Cost XA
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4R1H 2,264,797 518,119 1,720,675 1,243,483 5,747,074
Additions NE 104,300 100,052 204,252 1,470,696 1,879,300
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A31H 2,369,097 618,171 1924927 2,714,179 7,626,374
Additions wE 50,600 12,030 380,101 - 442,731
At 31 March 2014 R2014%E3831H 2,419,697 630,201 2,305,028 2,714,179 8,069,105
Accumulated depreciation RZIHE
At 1 April 2012 201244 A1R 1,194,912 256,169 999,497 1,029,714 3,480,292
Charge for the year FERHR 470,101 54,706 390,778 186,749 1,102,334
At 31 March 2013 20133 A31H 1,665,013 310,875 1,390,275 1,216,463 4,582,626
Charge for the year FRHMER 480,709 53,299 363,920 520,823 1,418,751
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H 2,145,722 364,174 1,754,195 1,737,286 6,001,377
Carrying amounts fREE
At 31 March 2014 R2014%E3831H 273,975 266,027 550,833 976,893 2,067,728
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3H31H 704,084 307,296 534,652 1,497,716 3,043,748

As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s motor vehicles held under finance leases
amounted to HK$976,892 (2013: HK$1,497,715) (note

25).

P2014F3/318 AEBRERERAE
AR TEMRMEES 5 A976,89278 7T
(20134 : 1,497,715 7T )(H15225) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

18. SUBSIDIARIES

19.

18. B AT

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MBARZERET :
Particulars of Ownership interest
Place of issued and held by the Principal activities and
Name incorporation paid up capital  Company place of operation
BORBRE/  AAEBEN
£8 et {32 3 B BaRFFE BEAER IEXRBREEHH
Kong Shum Union Property British Virgin 11 shares of 100% direct Investment holding
Management Group Limited Islands US$1.00 each
(“KSG")
BABENZEREBERLR HBRELES 11REMR1.00%T 100%E % RERK
(TKSG) HRR
Kong Shum Union Property Hong Kong HK$22,000,000  100% indirect Provision of property
Management Company Limited management services in
(“KSU") Hong Kong
BABENEERERAA BE 22,000,000%7C  100%fE#E RENEEERY  BE
(f /ﬂtH%mJ)
K-King Cleaning Services Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% indirect Provision of cleaning services
(“K-King") in Hong Kong
HOa2RBERA Bt 10087t 100%ff# RUFRRE BE
Q&V Security Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,100,000 100% indirect Provision of security services
(“Q&v") in Hong Kong
BRZEHEERA 30 2,100,000%7L  100%f# RURZ RS BE

DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE

19. RABRBREFANERSE

POLICIES
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits placed for life insurance policies BLAFRBRREFA
IS 7,526,068 3,814,900

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
RBEYEERE (ER)ERAA




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

19. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE

POLICIES (continued)

In June 2012, the Company’s subsidiary, KSU entered
into a life insurance policy with an insurance company
to insure an executive Director. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and policy holder is KSU and the total insured
sum is US$1,632,000 (approximately HK$12,677,376).
KSU is required to pay an upfront deposit of US$510,000
(approximately HK$3,961,680) including an expense
charge at inception of the policy amounting to US$30,600
(approximately HK$237,701). KSU can terminate the
policy at any time and receive cash back based on the
cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal, which
is determined by the upfront payment of US$510,000
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the expense
charged at inception, the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge (“Cash Value”). In addition,
if withdrawal is made between the 1st and 15th policy
year, there is a specific amount of surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay KSU an interest of
4.15% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the
policy for the first year. Commencing on the second year,
a minimum guaranteed interest of 2.5% per annum is
guaranteed by the insurance company. As at 31 March
2014 and 2013, this deposit placed for a life insurance
policy was pledged to a bank to secure bank facilities
granted to the Group.

19. RASRBREFANRS

(&)

201256 R - A AR KK B R RA
R A E R AR DA
SREREURE-—RBHITES-
BEZRE IRARREFBEAS
RS 4RI R A1,632,000
E 7t ( 4912,677,376% 7T )o 7B R B
A A I B % £510,000%E 7T 4
3,961,680 70 ) BERHAMLRE
B 7B 2 1 2 7 2 B A30,600% JT( 4
237,701 7T ) B IREE G Al FNE ] B
RIRIEZRERBERREZRE Y
HEEBEKEIRS W HIREENR
510,000% 7T & AT B ER 2 2517 B &
MARAYRERAINCHAYER -
2HREBMREERARAZ((REE
B)MEE N WA REE—F
i%ﬂii RIR B FEE ﬁ%&ifﬁ%
RIRFA -

F—F REARBREN#BZES
BEERFBA15%T N FE F 8 R
B REZFR  REBAGGIEERE
ZIRBEREFEFNR2 5% FIE - A
20144 201353 A31H st AS R
BREFANZESEEEE  UER
RITR T ASBEHRITHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

19. DEPOSITS PLACED FOR LIFE INSURANCE

POLICIES (continued)

In July 2013, KSU entered into another life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure another
executive Director. Under the policy, the beneficiary and
policy holder is KSU and the total insured sum is
US$1,200,000 (approximately HK$9,324,000). KSU is
required to pay an upfront deposit of US$482,491
(approximately HK$3,748,955) including an expense
charged at the inception of the policy amounting to
US$28,949 (approximately HK$224,936). KSU can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment
of US$482,491 plus accumulated interest earned and
minus the expense charged at inception, the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (“2nd Cash
Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made between the
1st and 18th policy year, there is a specific amount of
surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay KSU an interest of 3.6%
per annum on the outstanding 2nd Cash Value of the
policy for the first year. Commencing on the second year,
a minimum guaranteed interest of 2% per annum is
guaranteed by the insurance company. As at 31 March
2014, the deposit placed on this life insurance policy
was pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The above deposits placed for life insurance policies are
denominated in US$, a currency other than the functional
currency of the Group.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
RBEYEERE (ER)ERAA

19. RASRRREFANES

(&)

M2013F7 A B R A H—EIRE
RNAIFI B — 1B ASREBIREARE
SRR TEZ -BREBEZRE &
ARREFBABB RS MBE
& %8 /&1,200,0003 Jt.( #£9,324,000
BIL) BEBAAINENZS
4824913 Jr( #)3,748,955% T )°
PRERAAVRERIN2HATER
28,949 JT(#7224,9367 7T ) © /8 /R B
A REMRREL EZRERBIERR
REZREZESEAKRIIRS It
T5 1B 8 78 1~ 30482,491 3= 7T & Fir BR X
ZEFFBERMBALRERI 2
FAYBRH RARERREEAMX
([F-BEBRLEE]MET LI
WRREE—FEZE T+ N\FRE B
ERTEBEEARRAY

F—F REARBRENBZEZ
B SBERELS3.6%SMFEFE
FHA cRE_FE RERAABIRE
REZREREFFNER2%FF S -
R2014%F38318 ° 3tk A SRR R
BEANZSEEERR  WEIRET
BRYPAEBMNRITHE -

ERRASRBREFANZESIRE
TLRHE R AAEBINEEE R ASN
B o



20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

20.

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) and
assets recognised by the Group:

Accelerated

EEBIREE

ATBAEBEHERNEBRELERIA
(BE)REE :

Decelerated

tax tax
depreciation depreciation  Provisions Total
DR BLIE R 2R B TE
e e B B%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Note)
(Hzz)
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4A1H (129,958) 165,291 1,635,161 1,670,484
Credit to profit or loss for the year RFRFTAER
— origination and reversal of —EREZENTR
temporary differences PS&El
(note 13) (HfiF13) (38,731) 25,550 365,001 351,820
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A31H (168,689) 190,841 2,000,152 2,022,304
Credit to profit or loss for the year RFAFHABRZE
- origination and reversal of -~ EREENRR
temporary differences R&E
(note 13) (Hf7£13) (14) 64,903 146,717 211,606
At 31 March 2014 R2014%3A31H (168,703) 255,744 2,146,869 2,233,910
Note: Provisions represent the temporary differences of provision for Wit - %1%TE¢$@H7T%¥&EW§$%§%
certain expenses (including provision for long service payment, & (BERBARSREE  REH
unrealised annual leaves and bonuses) made in the financial i@x%%&?ﬂl%ﬁ‘ﬁ) ok gisa cs
statements of the Group which would only be tax deductible when £ HERNERNZERRAE
these expenses are actually paid. M -
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances RERE AR R & B IR B I8 4 e
(after offset) for the consolidated statements of financial (HEHER) DT -
position purposes:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deferred tax assets RIET IR E B 2,233,910 2,022,304
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

21. BE5 R EMEWRIE

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Trade receivables H 5 W GIA 48,288,078 43,627,232
Deposits, prepayments and other & FEARIEREA

receivables JE YRR 4,082,226 9,315,305

52,370,304 52,942,537

The Group’s trade and other receivables was denominated

in HK$.

The Group does not grant credit terms to its customers.
The aging analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

st

AEENE 5 N EMEWRKIEAE T

ARELRARESET RN H
SREMHORZ ERATMT -

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$ HK$

BT BT

0-30 days 0%30H 27,976,719 24,859,487
31-60 days 31%60H 11,589,615 8,886,382
61-90 days 61%290H 2,947,035 3,389,293
over 90 days H#iE90H 5,774,709 6,492,070
48,288,078 43,627,232

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

21. TRADE AND OTHER 21.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

B2 R HE M EWGRE (&)

B RYGACBHEL THA R
HME EAEBBRYEBORIRES
AHENBIEP -ZFEZRKKA
M RRE DTN

2014 2013
20144 2013%F
HK$ HK$
AT BT

Overdue by: AT B fET8 H
1-30 days 1£30H
31-60 days 31£60H
61-90 days 61290H
over 90 days #8890 H

The breakdown of the Group’s deposits, prepayments
and other receivable are as follows:

27,976,719 24,859,487
11,589,615 8,886,382
2,947,035 3,389,293
5,774,709 6,492,070

48,288,078 43,627,232

RNEFHIRS - T8 K8 & H i fE UL
FUARBRAALNT

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$ HK$

BT 77T

Other receivables due from customers JE IR | E At R U Rk 1B - 1,004,337
Other receivables due from other parties — FEHCE A A TEYE A fEUKL

IR 1,276,818 6,158,307

Deposits e 1,939,502 285,300

Prepayments AR 865,906 1,867,361

4,082,226 9,315,305

Annual Report 2013/14
2013/14F & 1 13



114

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 22. BBt IRE

RIBEEB R FEDIFE161BIRHE 2 &
WE SN RIBWT ¢

The amounts due from directors and related parties,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance are as follows:

(@) Amounts due from directors (a) EWEEFRE
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year
FREEAENEHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
20144 2013%F 20145 20134
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Ho Ying Cheung fa] FE 4 - 6,081,968 6,081,968 6,081,968
Ho Ying Choi o] F& 87 - - - 2,368,099
- 6,081,968
The amounts are non-trade related, unsecured, ZECRHRIIEZIHE  EK
interest-free and repayable on demand. R ERIRERKERE-
(b) Amount due from ultimate holding company (b) EWHAZERDRRIE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Topgrow Holdings Limited Topgrow Holdings Limited - 503,716

The above advance is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT

ERABRRERT 2B NRBERE

=
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22. RELATED PARTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

B ISR B EE

22. B IRE ()

Amounts due from related parties (c) FEURRAEE S FRIE
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year
FRARBAENLEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
201445 20134 20144 20134
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Fortune Trend Investment  FHEREBERR QA
Limited! - 6,816,129 6,816,129 §,290,347
Eastern Rise Properties RAVE(EE)BR
(Holdings) Limited? NG - 15,262 15,262 51,312
Huge Rise Investment RERREBR AR
Limited? - 20,510 20,510 20,510
More Rise Investment AAREBR AR
Limited! - 4,829,827 4,829,827 4,829,827
Super Potent Limited? HYAR AR — 74,407 74,407 74,407
Ho Siu Chun? EESZZ - 3,615,086 3,963,470 3,615,086
_ 15,371,221

All the above balances are non-interest bearing and
recoverable on demand.

Notes: ' Fortune Trend Investment Limited (“Fortune Trend”)
and More Rise Investment Limited (“More Rise”) have
common directors and shareholders of the Company.

2 Eastern Rise Properties (Holdings) Limited, Huge Rise
Investment Limited and Super Potent Limited have
common directors and shareholders and were owned
by a close family member of a Director of the Company.

3. The younger sister of the Directors of the Company,
Mr. Ho Ying Cheung and Mr. Ho Ying Choi.

B Ll & SR B MR ERIL

[E] o

Hisz -

i

THERBBBRAR(TTHE D
EAAREAR QAR
ADBARRBNHBRESER
PR3R -

REMEEE)BERAR
ZRBREBERARREYE
RABIAHRESERBER
WH—HARBESH—F
RIKKBHEE

AN B) B =R ] JE A 55 AR R A
JRE Bt 5 AR O AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # Z201443H31H - F/ZF

22. RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

(e)

(f)

The remuneration of key management personnel
during the year is as follows:

22. B IRE ()

(d) FEEBAEZHE
FRATEEEABZBMEOT

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Short-term employee benefits = HE B R A

Amount due to a director

4,051,464 1,318,750

() EN—REENE

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Ho Ying Choi o] FE B - 437,235

The amount due is non-trade related, unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a related party

ZRIARIEB H AR EEE
RRNRERESR -

() EN—BEBLRE

2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
River Sea Union Property LB EMEER
Management (Shenzhen) CFRYIDBR AR
Company Limited - 6,186,686

The amount due is non-trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT

ZRIARIEB H AR EEE
RERNRERESR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

22. RELATED PARTY 22. BAEEAINE (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(9) Related parties transactions (9) BAEARS
In addition to the related party transactions and BRI B mR A ol
balances detailed elsewhere in the financial AR REERIN REEEE
statements, the Group had the following transactions BB TN EANZ R ZT ¢

with its related parties during the year:

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Related companies FiE AN A
— Rental expenses — e 252,000 1,385,000
Shareholders f&ER
— Dividend paid —BERE — 5,000,000
Directors =
— Loan interest paid —BERERFHEA = 374,285
— Compensation of key management —EZEEARBZME
personnel 4,051,464 1,318,750
23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 23. RERBITERK R EFRIT
x5
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (G
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash on hand R 188,000 187,000
Bank balances RITAEER 35,711,808 5,389,540
Cash and bank balances He MIRTT4E 35,899,808 5,576,540
Pledged bank deposits (Note) EEBRITIFER(ME) 15,896,023 15,666,435
Note: Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to Hiat -‘Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁé‘2014f§ﬂ3iEl )53
secure banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 201343 A31 H BRI TIRIT 273K+ A
2014 and 31 March 2013. ERAREEERIRITRE A -
The Group’s cash and bank balances and pledged bank AEBZRS RRTEHBAREER
deposits were denominated in HK$. IRITIF A TTATE ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 23. RERBITHEBRRSIEIFRT
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued) (&)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITRESEBHRTHERFE 2 )ZH
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are MEFB - BHERERCHRE—
made for varying periods of between one day and one AE—F1%5 RIXEE ZRIRE
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of ®HKME KA BREERTFRA
the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term R B -RITEHBLEEBEREE
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged AU EE RS EERT R
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no 1T TFRAETL  1R2014F3 8318
recent history of default. The deposits are in Hong Kong F#0.01%=0.1%(20134F : 0.01% =
dollars and at the interest rate of 0.01% to 0.1% (2013: 0.15%)st 8. °

0.01% to 0.15%) as at 31 March 2014.

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. EZ RHEMENTIE

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade payables 2 Z e /I8 1,199,455 1,427,659

Building deposits received EREES 2,919,048 3,121,921
Sundry creditors and accruals (note a) HEMEMNERERKETER

(Hiata) 31,347,993 28,025,198

Provision for long service payment (note b) = ERBRTS & B (A/atb) 6,143,638 5,446,638

41,610,134 38,021,416

The Group’s trade and other payables were denominated NEBMNE 5 N H b fES RIEAE T
in HK$. HHE o

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24. &5 & E {508 (&)
The aging analysis of the trade payables were as follows: B RNZIENRRDITAT -
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0-30 days 0&230H 1,199,455 1,427,659
Notes: BtaE -
(a)  The breakdown of sundry creditors and accruals are as follows: (a) EfEMAREREGTERZBHMANT
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Accrued staff cost and staff benefit ﬁﬁﬂ'g\lﬁiﬁ&%l%ﬁﬂ 17,321,639 15,490,869
Accrued staff bonus and annual leave EETE TRRARER 7,035,696 6,675,505
Other accrued expenses HE b pERT R 781,982 291,491
Other payables due to customers JE< %5 = O EL th & A< FRIE 793,654 1,306,947
Other payables due to other parties FEfT EAth A £ E Ath B A 3R IE 5,415,022 4,260,386
31,347,993 28,025,198
(b)  The movement of provision for long service payment is stated (b)y RERBSEEHENEBHI|WAT :
as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of the year REH) 5,446,638 5,286,909
Provision made during the year FANEE 1,423,194 740,454
Paid in the year FARRK (726,194) (580,725)
At end of the year RER 6,143,638 5,446,638
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

25. REHERE
Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

RERLAH BRERYNNFERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20144 20134
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amount payable under finance leases; RS FENFIE :
Within one year —FR 373,032 434,706 352,644 388,194
In the second to fifth years FEEFRE
inclusive (BREEEMF) 207,165 580,197 203,696 556,340
580,197 1,014,903 556,340 944 534
Less: Future finance charge W RRBERX (23,857) (70,369) - -
Present value of lease obligations HEAERE 556,340 944,534 556,340 944,534
Less: Amount due or settlement B EGEIES @A
within 12 months AX A HFE
shown under current liabilities GlaRBEE) (352,644) (388,194)
Amount due for settlement after 12 T={E AR ZI B [
months IR 203,696 556,340

Certain of the Group’s motor vehicles are held under
finance lease (note 17). The lease terms are within 3 to
5 years. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent

rental payments.

The above finance leases carry interest at the rate per

annum of 2.18 to 5%.

AEBETAEARERE(HaE17)
A -HBAIESF - TAHENRE
EEREE TENIAEESNRE
VA7

LB TR B R4 I %2.18% E 5%
é\ o

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

26. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED 26. RITEE-HEF

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank loans, secured IRITER FHEA 18,201,227 30,595,456
Bank overdrafts, secured RITES HEMA 1,132,372 8,211,902
19,333,599 38,807,358
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings RITEENREESTET :
is as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank overdrafts RITEX 1,132,372 8,211,902
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —&FRZIHEERIEED R
within one year TER 9,506,150 18,747,029
Portion of bank loans due for repayment — —S{&ZIHAEE M A BNE
after one year which contain a EEERNIOIRITE
repayment on demand clause £ 8,695,077 11,848,427
19,333,599 38,807,358
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

26. BANK BORROWINGS - SECURED (continued)  26. $R{T{E 5 — 5 ()

The Group’s bank borrowings were due for repayment REBZHEENRITEELOT -
as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Overdrafts repayable on demand BREREENES 1,132,372 8,211,902
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FAREEERFLS
within one year RITER 9,506,150 18,747,029
10,638,522 26,958,931
Bank loans due for repayment after one ~ —FRIHEERRTT
year (Note) ER(HaE)
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRER2FR 5,463,354 3,153,350
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F B ERSENR 3,117,123 7,937,062
After 5 years S 1& 114,600 758,015
8,695,077 11,848,427
19,333,599 38,807,358
Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates Hiat - BIEISBEDERNERGHIETEE R

set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any
repayment on demand clause.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
HK$.

The above bank borrowings carry interest at the rate per annum
from 4.25 to 6.25% (2013: 2.86% to 6.25%) for the year ended
31 March 2014.

The bank loans were secured by properties of related parties,
(Fortune Trend and More Rise (note 22(c)(1)), unlimited guarantees
from the directors of the Company and related parties, (Fortune
Trend and More Rise (note 22(c)(1)), bank fixed deposit (note 23),
deposits placed for life insurance policies (note 19) and guarantees
from Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and HKSAR
Government (note 30).

1 22 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT

KB ER - I EAR (A iR B SR AE B A5 K

RITEENREEAETIIE-

B E2014F3A31H IEFE - FuiR
1718 B 1R F F K 3124.25%%6.25%
(20134 : 2.86%%6.25% )zt 5 °

ROTEFRBEB S TERRFSR
(Hfag22(cD)) Y- R RRIEE
N BBt 3 FHE RORF (M aE22(c)(1))
MERBER RTEHEFRK
(F1a23) st ASRBREF AR
S (HZINRBEERBESERA
A M EBRITE R B R (AZE30) Fr
HA o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Authorised and issued share capital EERERITRAE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Number of Number of
ordinary Nominal ordinary Nominal
shares Value shares Value
EBR¥A HE LARZE AfE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01ETH
Authorised: EeL
Upon incorporation (note (a)) ENGALZAAEIGEC)) - - 3800000 380,000
As at 1 April R4A1H . 3,800,000 380,000 - -
Subdivision of shares (note (c)) k{79 F(Hit(c) 34,200,000 - - -
Increase during the year (note (d))  FRIEM(HizH(d)) 4,962,000,000 49,620,000 - -
As at 31 March M3A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 3,800,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: E%??&@E Lo
Upon incorporation (note (a)) REEM AL (Hr it (a) - - 1 0.1
As at 1 Apri R4AIE 1 0.1 - -
Issue of shares on Reorganisation PGB S (A7 (b))

(note (b)) . 1 0.1 - -
Subdivision of shares (note (c)) ftn 2 (Hfat(c)) 18 - = =
Issue of shares upon: BTIIIHABATIRA -

Capitalisation issue (note (&) AMLE(T(Wiile) 299,999,980  2,999,999.8 - -
Placing of shares (note (f) RRERD (HE(T) 100,000,000 1,000,000 = =
As at 31 March M3A31H 400,000,000 4,000,000 1 0.1
Notes: (a) The Company was incorporated on 15 August 2012 in the BiaE © (a) ARRIR2012F8 158 EH S/
Cayman lIslands with an authorised share capital of S FEMA L - 0% AR AN A380,000
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 % 7T+ 5 /33,800,000% & % E &
each, of which one share of HK$0.10 was allotted and 0.108 KRG » B —RERE
issued. {B0.10/8 TR D FE B 3 I B 1T o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

Notes: (b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

On 8 August 2013 pursuant to the Reorganisation of the
Group for the Listing, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of KSU from Topgrow Holdings Limited
(“Topgrow”) in consideration of the allotment and issue of
a total of 1 share, credited as fully paid up to Topgrow.

HK$4,750,108 represents the aggregate amounts of issued
share capital of KSG, KSU, K-King and Q&V as at 31 March
2013. The said total share capital of HK$4,750,108 was
reallocated to meger reserve for the Reorganisation.

On 19 September 2013, every one share of the Company
of HK$0.10 was subdivided into ten shares of HK$0.01
each which resulted in the Company having an authorised
share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares
and an issued share capital of HK$0.2 divided into 20
shares held by Topgrow Holdings Limited.

On 19 September 2013, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an additional
4,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 September 2013, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited by HK$2,999,999.80
as a result of the issue of placing shares pursuant to the
placing as mentioned and defined in (f) below, an aggregate
of 299,999,980 Shares, by the way by capitalisation of the
sum of HK$2,999,999.80 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, would be issued, allotted
and credited as fully paid at par to the Shareholders as
appearing on the register of members of the Company at
close of business of 18 September 2013 (the “Capitalisation”).
Upon the Capitalisation, the issued share capital of the
Company would become HK$3,000,000 divided into
300,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 11 October 2013, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by the way of placing at a price
of HK$0.33 per share (the “Placing Price”) for a total cash
consideration of HK$33,000,000, before issurance cost. The
excess of the Placing Price over the par value of the shares
issued was credited to the share premium account of the
Company.

BRBEMEERE (ER)BERAT

27.

MR (48)
EERBBITRA(E)

Hia < (b)

(e)

MR2013F8HA8H B B &N £
BEAEMETZEHR AR F
M Topgrow Holdings Limited
([ Topgrow |) Wt & 7 R B & 1) 2 26
B B 17AR A - LB & M Topgrowid
B REBITE HE R ARSI ER
e

4,750,108/ Jt 18 M20139F3 31
HKSG - #REA A REBEZE
BITRAZ B FMRABE
4,750,108 TE M EHEH H B
EEMEE-
MR2013F9A19H KR Al & —
fRO.10B T R O 4 > & + &
BRROOIBTHRMD BHAR
A) /9 7% TE B X A380,0007% It -
9 £38,000,0008% % 17 i B 3%
17 & AR0.27% T 9 /208 Topgrow
Holdings Limited#55 K& 5 -

M20135F9H19R KA B FE IR
4,962,000,000/% & A% H {H0.017%8
T Z B An - 10 TE A7 380,000
77T 250,000,000 7T ©

2013569 A 198 » FFAR A &l R 1p
i B R A AR & T S0 IE At K 8
B EBRTRERODMELR
2,999,999.80/& T 1% * LA AR 2 &
17 % (B BR 3 AR TH T2,999,999.80
BTBFAEANTTN - MR20135F
9A 18R EXER AR BIIAR
AR A M AR BT R LB A #
299,999,980/ A B 71l 1 5 2 A 17
(TEARE]) BRI RNRAFE
B 817 IR 1§ 433,000,000/ 7T 5
#%300,000,0000% & %0.017% 7T &Y

Bt o

#2013410A11H + 100,000,000
IR AR E(EO.01 /B T A E AR I 2%
7 A BRER03IIJBITZER
(EEEDEHREES ReRER
A /333,000,0007% 7T (R {1 R 3 1T
B REEBHERTROE
ENESBEFTARRR ZBROEE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

28. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 28. A QT M EER
COMPANY
Statement of financial of position of the Company at the RARRBERRNDTBRATR DA
end of the reporting period is set out below: N
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RE—RNB AT 4,750,108 -
Loan to a subsidiary (note a) BERT—FHMB AR (A ita) 15,000,000 =
19,750,108 -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SELNE O 135,563 1,440,450
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b) MEYHERRIFKIEA(HZD) 30,971,463 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 2,817,906 _

33,924,932 1,440,450

Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals st E A 674,458 -
Amount due to a subsidiary (note b) e —FEM B R aFIB(HiFb) - 6,405,556
674,458 6,405,556

Net current assets (liabilities) REBEEARE)FHE 33,250,474 (4,965,106)
Total assets less current liahilities BEERARBARS 53,000,582 (4,965,106)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(BR)FE 53,000,582  (4,965,106)
Capital and reserve EXE#E
Share capital N 4,000,000 -
Reserves (note c) fEE (A aEce) 49,000,582 (4,965,106)
Total equity EREE 53,000,582 (4,965,106)
Notes: (a)  the amoumt is unsersured and interest-free. HaE - (a) SRHRAREKERAE -

(b)  the amounts are unsersured, interest-free and (b) ﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ BB RIRE

repayable on demand. RIER o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

28. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 28. AARzMBER (&

COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

Kt < (%)

(c) Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and () ARBERERAFERBEFENE
prior years are as follows: NN
Retained
profits/
Share (Accumulated
premium losses) Total
REEA
ROEE  (RHER) A
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Loss and the total comprehensive expenses for — EiAEE K 2 HE R X 458
the period = (4,965,106) (4,965,106)
Issue of shares of the Company upon AL B BT AR R
incorporation (note 27(a)) (Hizt27(a) = = =
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3H31H = (4,965,106) (4,965,106)
At 1 April 2013 R2013F481H = (4,965,106) (4,965,106)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the FREMNRZEBALLE
year - 25,127,633 25,127,633
Issue of shares on Reorganisation (note 27(b)) BEHBRTRG
(K15£27(b)) 4,750,108 - 4,750,108
Capitalisation issue (note 27(e)) EXRLBIT(ME27() (3,000,000) - (3,000,000)
Placing of shares (note 27(f)) BRABE (H227(1) 32,000,000 - 32,000,000
Expenses incurred in connection with the placing BERADEEELHNMEX
of shares (4,912,053) = (4,912,053)
At 31 March 2014 ®2014%€3831H 28,838,055 20,162,527 49,000,582
29. DIVIDEND 29. RE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interim dividend (note a) AR B (At ata) - 5,000,000
Proposed final dividend of A RER B F RSB
HK5 cents per share (note b) (Kiithb) 20,000,000 -
20,000,000 5,000,000
Note: (a) It represents dividend paid by KSU to its then shareholders. Kzt - (a) BB FHEASREERRR AT
g o
(b) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final (b) RIFEHRE ARAREEERIK

dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 of
HK5 cents (2013: nil) per share has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company in the forth coming general

meeting.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

30. BANKING FACILITIES

Pledged bank fixed deposits (note 23) and deposits
placed for life insurance policies (note 19), properties
of related parties, (Fortune Trend and More Rise
(note 22(c)(1), unlimited guarantee from the directors
of the Company and related parties, (Fortune Trend and
More Rise (note 22(c)(1), guarantees from Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited and HKSAR Government
(the “Securities”) have been pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group and also part of
the Securities have been pledged to a bank to secure
banking facilities granted to related parties.

As at 31 March 2014, the banking facilities granted to
the Group are approximately HK$81.4 million (2013:
approximately HK$81.4million).

As at 31 March 2014, approximately HK$19.3 million
(2013: 54.6 million) of the banking facilities have been
utilised by the Group.

As at 31 March 2014, the outstanding amounts of the
bank borrowings to the said related parties are
approximately HK$8.7 million (2013: HK$4.8 million).

31. LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the total future

30. RITRE
EEMRITEMER(HZ23) LA
SREAREFANZE(MZI9)
B 05 TH B RORF (BT iE22(c)(1)) '
X ARREEREE T TTENAA
(Hiaz22(c)(1)) M E R BEHER A K&
BRIBEFBR AR MNEEBMEL
RER(TER M) EER T RITIAN
BETAKENRITRE AHOH
o IR E B T IR1T A BUS X T B B
JTEVIRTTRRE ©

MN20146F3A318 B FAEFER R
17 B B #98,1408 & T (20134 : 4
8,140 % 7T)°

M20143H31H © 41,9308 & 7T
(20134 : #95,4608 /& T ) KR 77 &t
BOEAREBFHA -

MN2014%3A318 @ ik @@EE 5 R

TEENARERS BN AIIOE BT

(20134 : 4808 7T)°
31. AL EE

RIBER T BEEEEHLOET

minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating B 7R SR B (AR A9 1< SR AR R 1 LA TS Bg
leases, which fall due as follows: EIHR

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$ HK$

7T BT

Within one year —F RN 2,215,800 1,898,800

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEERF(BHE
BEMF) 1,608,000 2,666,400
3,823,800 4,565,200

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated
for term of one to two years and rentals are fixed over
the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

RERONFTIEARERES THA
ERANES -HEENHMLS—EM
F-mEEHAESREE X TERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

Financial guarantees issued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
issued cross guarantees to a bank in respect of the
banking facilities granted to the Group and its
related parties. Under the cross guarantees, the
Group and its related parties are jointly and severally
liable for all or any the borrowings of each of them
from the bank (note 30).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the above issue. The
maximum liability of the Group at the end of the
report period under guarantees is the outstanding
amount of the bank borrowings to the related parties
at that date.

The outstanding amounts of bank borrowings to the
related parties as at 31 March 2014 is approximately
HK$8.7 million (2013: HK$4.8 million).

The fair value of the cross guarantees at date of
inception is not material and is not recognised in
the financial statements.

Performance bond and incorporated owners’
fund

Performance bond has been issued by several banks
as the Group keeps certain incorporated owners’
funds in the form of client accounts which were
held on trust for and on behalf of the customers.
These client accounts were not recognised as assets
and associated liabilities in the financial statements
of the Group. At the end of the reporting period,
the directors do not consider it probable that a
claim on the performance bonds will be made
against the Group.

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BREESYEEE (ER)BRAT

32. WAREE

(@)

(b)

C & B B iR R

RBEBMR AEECHAEHE
NEBRR TR TIRITTRE R —
BERITHE M EER - RIBEZF
MEER AEBEREBEB R
Rl M (B B sL & B A RITIR T HY
A EARERR(HZ30)

RBER EFELIRRHE
BYHAEEM] LR EEFEHNR
& NREBERHERREREAET
&= B EANZ A RAREERE
THRITREE -

MN201453 8310 K E &
7 B R 178§ & 498,700,000/%8
TC(20134F : 4,800,000/ 7T ) ©

MEEREKY BN AR EL
TERX - WER IR AR -

BHRBEREZIIUREIEES

ZRBITEZRHEORES R
AAREBNTFERF(ARRK
REPEABALA)RESET
XTURLEES ZEFPK
5 3 45 A 7 R [ B 7 S R FE SR A
BENHEBABE -RBEHK-
EERREAEEFELEORE
SREMATEET K



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Performance bond and incorporated owners’
fund (continued)

As at 31 March 2014, the amounts of outstanding
performance bond was approximately HK$16.9
million (2013: HK$15.8 million).

As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate amounts of
the bank balances in the client accounts mentioned
above were approximately HK$18.0 million (2013:
HK$22.2 million).

Legal cases

In carrying out the ordinary course of its business,
the Group is subject to the risk of being named as
a party in legal actions, claims and disputes in
connection with its business activities. The nature
of the legal proceedings initiated against the Group
generally include (i) claims for employees’
compensation by the Group’s employees; (ii) claims
for personal injury caused by the negligence of the
Group and owners’ corporations of the properties
by passers-by, residents or other users of the
respective properties; (iii) claims for property
damage or economic loss caused by the negligence
of the Group and owners’ corporations of the
properties by residents or other users of the
respective properties; and (iv) claims for property
damage caused by the negligence of individual flat
owners by other residents or users of the respective
properties. The Group maintains insurance cover
and, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
based on current evidence, any such existing claims
should be adequately covered by the insurance as
at 31 March 2014.

Save as disclosed herein below, as of the date of
on which the consolidated financial statements
approved by the directors, no member of the Group
is involved in any litigation, arbitration or claim of
material importance and, so far as the directors are
aware, no litigation, arbitration or claim of material
importance is pending or threatened against any
member of the Group.

32. ARKE(HE)

(b)

(c)

BHAREEREFIRLIEES
(4&)

MN2014%3 8318 K B ~ &
4 1% & £ # /16,900,000 7T
(20134 : 15,800,000/ 7T) ©

M2014%3A318 Lt B P
REAMIBTEBRRSE
#9 /18,000,0007% 7T(20134F :
22,200,000 7T ) °

ERER
RETEARERBREF A&
B A XREE A RE AR TT
B RERFETRAEST—T
1M T LR o R AR SR B 1R A 1R
BEFOEEAR EEREOAEHE
NESMEERERINRE
(NARE MY ENEETREE
R B BHA S G 186
MENREA  ERHEAMERA
TRENRE: (DAKE LY
ORI REBHAG 22y
XEEREARERR BiEH
MENEFXEMEAALRS
HERME © RGv)E R B X T 6
BOIBMEBERE AHEEY
ENEMEFTHEBA LR
RE-AEENRBREHRERE
MARBEZEZRS RIKFE ATE
% R2014F3H31R8 - 1 1] %
FREREBECHRERTIRHR
B o

BRI XATREEIN REZHE
HEMBHRREY SEANKE
MK B A RIS AR AR - (R &
HEARE MUEFHAA K
SEEMKERRBESRT &
S} BR BB BV R AT AR RA - RSk
EXRE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

()

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

Legal cases (continued)

(i)

KSU has been named as a third party on 4
May 2012 by the first and third defendant in
a High Court action commenced on 24 August
2011 regarding a personal injury action against,
among others, a scaffolding company and the
incorporated owners’ of the building for death
caused to the deceased employed by the
scaffolding company. KSU filed its defence on
3 October 2012 and the date of the trial had
been fixed to be held at the High Court on 15
September 2014 to 30 September 2014. The
amount of damages will be assessed by the
court and the Company is unable to assess
the quantum of the case. As stated in the
revised statement of damages of the plaintiff
dated 11 September 2012, the plaintiff claims
for a total of HK$3,562,688.53.

The Company’s legal adviser as to the legal
proceedings opined that (i) KSU will not be
liable for the damages claimed by the first and
third defendants unless and until (a) the first
and third defendants had been held liable by
the court for the plaintiff's claims in the main
action; (b) such defendants’ claims against
KSU had been established, and it was pre-
mature to determine whether the indirect claim
against KSU would be substantiated or not;
(ii) KSU has a good defence in the third party
claims; (iii) the public liability insurance policy
(the “PL Policy”) does not cover the above
accident occurred to the deceased since KSU
did not report the accident to the insurance
company within the prescribed time limit; and
(iv) in the event that the court holds KSU liable
to the claim, the maximum amount of potential
liability of KSU would be the total amount of
the claims, i.e. HK$4,423,688.53 after
deducting the amounts which the scaffolding
company and the incorporated owners of the
building could convince the court to reduce
in their defence to the plaintiffs claim in the
main action plus the costs of the proceedings.

REBEMEER(ZR)ARLQF

32 :E/\ \E1§ ( nﬁ)
ERER(E)

()

(i)

IR A 201158 A24H
E/\\m#/ﬂmﬁﬂﬁéﬁé\ﬂﬂ’\]—%—?
ABBERABFE—KE=
1B A FA2012E5 A4 R 3|
B—REZFH EHRHGRE
R(EdaHE)—BWBER
AINEFHEETREE G
ZEAMZRABMILEILT
RHABZERE B R

ABR2012%F10A3HIRE M
& MR BABE ER2014
#£9H158 &£2014%F9A30
BESSERBT -BES
A HREBT R - AR R]
AT HE R ERE -
0 B2 FA A PR2012F9A11
BIEELRMBIREZREE
PRl H - B A A RENA £
3,562,688.53/%750

$ A BLEZ A FARE PE?%EEF'EJ
N 7_:_'7(|)/%/7K gﬁ/lz\l //\/Tj_

EE= TILH}\?EIEE’JT%EE%
BEEBE KRIEREEQ@E—
ME= h#)\fﬁ)i/ﬂniwﬁﬁ
MERAEETETEPRT
MEEBEE: bZSiHY
BARBENMBARRE
XS T ¥ RS
NEEZERRESBEBESEE
BEZ2BE (VB XRBA
RE=ZFREBZENFE
B (i EBEERNEINTG
TRARBEERE(TAR
RE DIRRE - [RE &S R

& I £ 5 15 7F B BR (A [A) 1R
BN B ME B K(iv)

/flszﬁzmxam & REER
B BRBEMNEBEERER
e ARELESTE A
4,423,688.53/ 7T + JH & 1
HTHH””/“T&TEFE’J%E_L
2R B 1] 54 AR A B B (R ¥ £
IMAREBITEHNRENT
EEINERAAR AR B R 78 ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c) Legal cases (continued)

(ii)

KSU has been named as a respondent
regarding an employee compensation claim in
a District Court action commenced on 24 April
2012. On 21 September 2011, during the
course of patrolling the staircases of one of
the buildings managed by KSU, the applicant
employed by KSU fell from the staircases. The
first hearing was held on 28 September 2012
at the District Court of Hong Kong. The
insurance company, on behalf of KSU, has
admitted its employee’s compensation liability
on this case and is now liaising with the
applicant’s solicitor to arrange the applicant to
attend a joint medical examination. The amount
of compensation will be assessed by the Court
therefore the Company is unable to assess the
quantum of the case. At the time of the
accident, KSU was insured against liability by
an insurance company and the maximum
amount of compensation payable by the
insurance company is HK$200,000,000. As (i)
the employee’s compensation insurance policy
(the “EC policy”) covers such incident occurred
to the applicant; and (ii) the insurance
company would have to pay for the employee’s
compensation and costs of this claim to the
applicant pursuant to the EC policy, the
Company’s legal adviser as to legal proceeding
is therefore of the view that KSU has no
potential liability in this claim.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

()

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

Legal cases (continued)

(iii)

KSU has been named as one of the defendants
regarding a personal injury claim sustained by
the plaintiff on or about 7 July 2009 in a High
Court action commenced on 30 May 2012.
The insurance company for and on behalf of
KSU filed a defence with the High Court on
14 January 2013. A joint orthopedic examination
has been taken place on 9 July, 2013 to verify
the condition of the plaintiff. The amount of
damages for personal injury sustained by the
plaintiff will be assessed by the court and the
Company is unable to assess the quantum of
the case. As stated in the statement of damages
of the plaintiff dated 18 December 2012, the
plaintiff claimed for a total of HK$2,150,206
as compensation. At the time of the accident,
KSU was insured against liability by an
insurance company and the maximum amount
of compensation payable by the insurance
company is HK$25,000,000. The Company’s
legal adviser as to legal proceedings opined
that (i) the PL Policy covers the above accident
occurred to the plaintiff; and (ii) save as the
insurance company shall not be liable for the
first HK$3,000, the insurance company would
have to pay for the claim to the plaintiff
pursuant to the PL Policy. The Company’s legal
adviser as to legal proceedings is therefore of
the view that KSU has no potential liability in
this claim.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(c) Legal cases (continued)

(iv)

On 15 July 2013, KSU issued a writ to one of
its customers being an owners’ corporation (the
“Defendant”), claiming an amount of
HK$113,958 for the total sum of the fixed
service charges as well as expenses incurred
by KSU for the management of the property
of the Defendants for the period from 1
November 2012 to 31 January 2013. The
Defendants filed its defence and counterclaim
on 5 September 2013. According to such
defence and counterclaim, the Defendant avers
that KSU is not entitled to the claim for the
said sum on the ground that KSU was in
breach of its duties under the management
agreement. Further, the Defendant alleged that
KSU was in breach of another agency
agreement entered into between the Defendant
and an advertising company. The Defendant
did not state the amount of its counterclaim
(the “Counterclaim”) against KSU in its defence
and counterclaim. KSU was insured against its
professional liability by an insurance company
for the maximum compensation amount
payable at HK$30,000,000 per claim. Given
that (i) KSU maintained that the relevant
documents, including income and expenditure
statement and balance sheet and all the
relevant documents and receipts for various
expenses (if available), had already been
provided to the Defendant; and (ii) the agency
agreement was made directly between the
Defendant and the said advertising company,
to which KSU is not a party and has no
relationship with the said advertising company,
and all the advertising income paid by the
advertising customers were paid by the said
advertising company directly to the Defendant,
not through KSU, the Company’s legal adviser
as to the legal proceedings opined that (i) KSU
had a good defence to the Counterclaim; and
(ii) it is likely that KSU’s liability to the
Counterclaim, if any, will be covered by the
Professional Indemnity Insurance Policy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z20144F3H31HiFF/&

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

()

Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited

Legal cases (continued)

(v)

KSU has been named as a respondent
regarding an Employees’ Compensation claim
in a District Court action commenced on 16
January 2014. On 28 October 2013, the
deceased employee was assigned by the
respondent, its agents, to work at the Site.
Whilst the deceased was on his duties, he
sustained fatal injuries. The insurance company,
on behalf of KSU, has admitted its employee’s
compensation liability on this case. The amount
of compensation will be assessed by the Court
therefore the Company is unable to assess the
quantum of the case. At the time of the
accident, KSU was insured against liability by
an insurance company and the maximum
amount of compensation payable by the
insurance company is HK$200,000,000.

KSU has been named as a respondent
regarding an Employees’ Compensation claim
in a District Court action commenced on 17
April 2014. On 13 September 2012, during
the course of stationing at the security guard
post sitting on the stool, the applicant as an
employee of the Group saw a tenant and tried
to retrieve an oversized post on the desk which
could not be inserted into the letter box. The
stool toppled and the applicant lost balance
and fell from the stool landing on her back
and buttock. As a result, the applicant
sustained injuries to her right hip and back.
The insurance company, on behalf of KSU,
has admitted its employee’s compensation
liability on this case. The amount of
compensation will be assessed by the Court
therefore the Company is unable to assess the
quantum of the case. At the time of the
accident, KSU was insured against liability by
an insurance company and the maximum
amount of compensation payable by the
insurance company is HK$200,000,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z2014F3AH31H IFFZ

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33. REBERERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transaction FEIRERS
Amounts due to directors of HK$5,000,000 were settled HZE2013F3A31IBILFE ENE
by the dividends paid by a subsidiary of the Group for = 5 IH5,000,000/% JT B 2~ & B —
the year ended 31 March 2013. B AR R EER -
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THREE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

=FHBBE
Year ended/As at 31 March
R3B31B,EHEIANALEE
2014 2013 2012
20145 2013%F 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET TET
OPERATING RESULT RexE
Revenue Wz 324,981 284,063 276,655
Cost of services ARESBX 7R (258,781)  (231,764)  (230,199)
Gross profit EF 66,200 52,299 46,456
Other income/(expenses), net Hi A (%) F58 279 - (874)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE REERE
equipment - - 2,526
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A - - 4,631
Administrative expenses THRAX (37,980) (30,422) (28,245)
Other operating expenses Hih & ER Y (19,775) (13,084) (7,495)
Finance costs BERA (1,105) (1,559) (1,264)
Profit before taxation bR 75 A& A 7,619 7,234 15,735
Income tax expense FTSHimAY (2,591) (1,664) (1,794)
Net profit for the year FRBRFHE 5,028 5,570 13,941
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Htb2mEbas(FAx)
Exchange differences on translation of nESINEEZERER
foreign operation - - 194
Release of translation reserve to profit or  RHE—EHB D A ERHRE
loss upon disposal of a subsidiary FHEEER - - (1,493)
Other comprehensive expenses FAEMEEKE(NBREER)
For the year, net of tax - - (1,299)
Profit and total comprehensive income for ZAQATEEABGEERZTRE
the year attributable to owners of the RE2EKEAE
Company 5,028 5,570 12,642
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 115,994 105,023 92,483
Total liabilities BEERE (62,427) (84,572) (74,032)
Net assets EEFRE 53,567 20,451 18,451
Equity attributable to owners of the KATHEE AEGER
Company 53,567 20,451 18,451

1 36 Kong Shum Union Property Management (Holding) Limited
BRBAVMEEE(BR)BERLT
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